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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271.5034 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5034

Fax:603-271-5166 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

April 10,2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter into an amendment to an existing contract with the Contractor listed
below in bold to add additional funding to support the increase of need and cost to provide
nutrition services to qualifying New Hampshire citizens, by increasing the total price
limitation by $22,797.21 from $23,988,179.72 to $24,010,976.93 with no change to the
contract completion dates of June 30, 2024, effective upon Governor and Council approval.
81.80% Federal Funds. 18.20% General Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on June 29, 2022, item
#45 and amended on April 12, 2023, item #31 A.

Contractor Name
Vendor

Code
Area Served Current Budget

Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised Budget

Community Action
Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties,

Inc.

177203

Belknap and
Merrimack

Counties

$3,976,162.69 $0 $3,976,162.69

Gibson Center for

Senior Services
155344

Albany,

Bartlett,
Chatham,
Conway(s),
Eaton,
Jackson,
Madison

$ 699.073.89 $0 $ 699.073.89

Grafton County
Senior Citizens

Council, Inc.

177675

Grafton

County and
Plainfield

$2,347,707.13 $0 $2,347,707.13

Newport Senior
Center

177250
Sullivan

County
$1,530,859.82 $0 $1,530,859.82

Ossipee Concerned
Citizens

170158
Carroll

County
$1,018,291.60 $0 $1,018,291.60

Rockingham
Nutrition MOW

155197
Rockingham
County

$4,082,582.11 $0 $4,082,582.11
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St Joseph
Community Services

155093
Hillsborough
County

$5,631,940.84 $  ■ $5,631,940.84

Strafford Nutrition

MOW
260818

Strafford

County
$1,521,873.94 $ $1,521,873.94

Tri-County
Community Action
Proqram

177195 Coos County $1,718,768.52 $ $1,718,768.52

Home Healthcare,
Hospice and
Community.
Services, inc.
(Formerly - VNA at
HQS. Inc.)

177274
Cheshire

County
$1,460,919.18 $22,797.21 $1,483,716.39

$23,988,179.72 $22,797:21 $24,010,976.93

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available In State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, v/ith the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to add additional funding to address the increased need for
home delivered and congregate meals and increased cost to provide nutritional services to
qualifying New Hampshire citizens. This contract will distribute the remaining American Rescue
Plan Act (ARRA) Congregate meal funding to vendors to support the continued operations of
congregate dining sites. The Contractor is experiencing an increase in request for meals due to
inflation and are faced with the increased cost of food statewide. Therefore, the Department is
requesting to add in the additional funds to ensure meal units are fulfilled and delivered.

Approximately 148 individuals will be served through these services. Approximately 2,811
additional meals will be served by this amendment during State Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024 vtrhich
is in addition to the 1.6 million meajs already being served through these services. The Contractor
will provide meals using the following three methods for the following populations:

•  Home delivered meals, delivered to the homes of eligible individuals who are homebound
and unable to prepare their own meals, or who are temporarily homelwund due to
recovery from illness or injury.

• Grab-n-Go meals, defined as meal delivery whereby eligible individuals, or their designee,
drive to a service location and are provided a meal without being required to leave their
vehicle.

•  Congregate meals, defined as meals served in a group setting at State-approved
locations.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing the quarterly program service reports
and semi-annual Home-Delivered Data Forms submitted by Contractor.
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Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department
will be unable to support the Increase of meal units being requested for older adults and younger
adults with disabilities or chronic illness and they may not have access to nutritious meals and
may struggle to live independently in their homes.

Area Served; Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Admin for Comm Living, ARPA Title III C, Assistance Listing
Number #93.045 FAIN #2101NHCMC6: and Center for Medicaid and Medicare HCBS FMAP
ARP.

Respectfully submitted,

LorV,e^eaver ^
Interim Commissioner

Tht Dtparlmenl of Health and Human Seroiees'Mieeion is to Join communities and families
in prouiding opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

Nutrition

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES,

GRANTS TO LOCALS, ADM ON AGING GRANTS

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc. (Vendor #177203)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

.  (Decrease) .
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  780,019.80 $ $  780,019.80

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  338.860.13 s $  338,860.13

544-500386 Meats - Home Delivered (Till) 2024 $  780.019.80 S $  780,019.80

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 S  338,860.13 S $  338,860.13

Subtotal $  2,237,759.86 $ $  2,237,759.86

Gibson Center for Senior Services (Vendor #155344)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  160,578.00 $ S  160,578.00

541-500383 " Meals - Congregate (TIM) 2023 $  58,392.00 $ $  58,392.00

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Tlll)^ 2024 S  160,578.00 $ $  160,578.00"

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 $  58,392.00 $ $  58,392.00

Subtotal $  437,940.00 $ $  437,940.00

Grafton County Senior Citizens Council, Inc. (Vendor # 177675)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals • Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  394,462.29 $ S  394,462.29

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (TIM) -2023 $  162,410.86 $ $  162,410.86

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2024 $  394,462.29 S S  394,462.29

541-500383 Meals - Congregale (TIII) 2024 S  162i410.86 S $  162,410.86

Subtotal $  1,113,746.30 s $  1,113,746^30

Newport Senior Center (Vendor #177250)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  280,962.84 $ $  280,962.84

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  123,888.36 S $  123,888.36

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (TIM) 2024 $ . 280,962.84 $ S  280,962.84

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 $  123,888.36 $ $  123,888.36

Subtotal $  809,702.40 $ $  809,702.40

Osslpee Concerned Citizens (Vendor #170158

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (TIM) 2023 $ , 139,175.71 $ $  139,175.71

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (TIM) 2023 $  79,048,17 $ $  79,048.17

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (TIM) 2024 S  139,175.71 S $  139,175.71

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 $  - 79,048.17 $ $  79,048.17

Subtotal $  436,447.76 $ $  436,447.76
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Rocklngham Nutrition MOW (Vendor #155197)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 S  788.729.94 S $  788.729.94

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  342,712.38 $ $  342.712.38

544-500386 Meals • Home Delivered (Till) •2024' $  788.729.94 $ $  788.729.94

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 $  342,712.38 S $  342.712.38

Subtotal $  2,262,884.64 $ $  2.262,884.64

St Joseph Community Services (Vendor #155093)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
. Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  1,290.268.56 $ $  1,290.268.56

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  560.579.42 S $. 560.579.42

544-500386' Meals - Home Delivered (TIM) 2024 $  1,290.268.56 $ $  1.290.268.56

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 $  560,579.42 S $  560,579.42

Subtotal $  3,701,695.96 $ $  3,701,695.96

Stratford Nutrition MOW (Vendor# 260818)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  305,000.88 $ $  305,000.88

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 S  132,525.51 S $  132,525.51

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2024 S  305,000.88 s $  305,000.88

.541-500383 Meals - Congregate (TIM) 2024 $  132,525.51 s $  132.525.51

Subtotal $  875,052.78 $ $  875,052.78

Tri-County Community Action Program (Vendor #177195)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (TIM) 2023 $  344,512.80 S  . S  344,512.80

541-500383 Meals • Congregate (Till) 2023 $  149,653.83 s $  149,653.83

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2024 S  - 344.512.80 s S  344,512.80

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 $  149,653.83 $ $  149,653.83

Subtotal $  988,333.26 $ $  988,333.26

Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, Inc. (VNA at HCS (Vendor #177274))

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals- Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  277,167.36 $ S  277,167.36

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  120,409.17 $ $  120.409.17

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2024 $  277,167.36 $ $  277,167.36

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 $  120,409.17 S $  120,409.17

Subtotal $  795,153.06 s $  795,153.06
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05-95-48-481010-7672 Summary for All Vendors

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  4.760,878.18 S $  4,760,878.18

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 •$ .2,068,479.83 $ $  2,068,479.83

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2024 $  4,760,878.18 S $ 4,760,878.18

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 $  2,068,479.83 $ $  2.068,479.83

Subtotal $ 13,658,716.02 $ $ 13,658,716.02

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES.
GRANTS TO LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (Vendor #177203)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

'544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  467,387.41 $ $  467,387.41

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  467,387.41 $ $  467,387.41

Subtotal $  934,774.82 $ $ 934,774.82

Gibson Center for Senior Services (Vendor #155344)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  41,361.00 S S 41,361.00

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  41,361.00 s $ 41,361.00

• Subtotal $  82,722.00 $ $ 82,722.00

Grafton County Senior Citizens Council, Inc. (Vendor # 177675)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  315,089.72 S $ 315,089.72

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  315,089.72 S $ 315,089.72

Subtotal $  630,179.44 $ $ 630,179.44

Newport Senior Center (Vendor #177250)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  205,775.03 $ $  205,775.03

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  205,775.03 S $ - 205,775.03

Subtotal $  411,550.06 $ $ 411,550.06

Ossipee Concerned Citizens (Vendor #170158)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 S  148,218.36 S $ ■ • 148,218.36

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  148,218.36 S ■$ 148,218.36

Subtotal $  296,436.72 $ $ 296,436.72

Rockingham Nutrition MOW(Vendor#15S197)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget
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544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $ 472,683.24 $ $  472,683.24

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 S 472,683.24 S $  472,683.24

Subtotal 945,366.48 $ $  945,366.48

St Joseph Community Services (Vendor #155093)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current.Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  608,250.00 $ $  608,250.00

544-500386 • Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  608,250.00 S S  608,250.00

Subtotal $  1,216,500.00 $ $  1,216,500.00

Strafford Nutrition MOW (Vendor #260818)

Class/Account Class Title SFY ■ Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 S  182,791.29 S $  182,791.29

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  182,791.29 $ $  182,791.29

Subtotal $  365.582.58 $ $  365,582.58

TrI-County Community Action Program (Vendor #177195)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 S  206,423.83 s $  206,423.83"

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  206,423.83 $ $  206,423.83

Subtotal $  412,847.66 S $  412,847.66

Home Heatthcare, Hospice and Community Services, Inc. (VNA at HCS (Vendor #177274

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 S  205,093.79 S S  205,0.93.79

544-500386 • Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  205,093.79 S $  205,093.79

Subtotal. $  410,187.58 $ $  ■ 410,187.58

05>95-48-481010-9255 Summary for All Vendors

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Iricrease/

{Decreasel
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  2,853,073.67 $ $  2,853,073.67

544-500386 Meais Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  2,853,073.67 $ $  2,853,073.67

Subtotal $  5,706,147.34 $ $  5,706,147.34

05-95-48-481010-2638 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS: DTLSS-ELDERLY-ADULT SVCS.
GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVC PROG,GENERAL FUND MATCH FOR ARPA, 85% FEDERAL. 15% GENERAL

Community Action Prograrn Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. Vendor #177203)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $  215,734.11 $ $  215,734.11

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  143,814.63 $ $  143,814.63

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  215,734.11 $ $  215,734.11

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 S  -143,814.63 S S  143,814.63
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Subtotal $ 719,097.48 $ $ 719,097.48

Gibson Center for Senior Services (Vendor #155344)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $ 43,794.00 S $ 43,794.00

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $ 44,605.00 $ $ 44,605.00

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $ 43;794.00 $ $ 43,794.00

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 S 44,605.00 s $ 44,605.00

Subtotal $ 176,798.00 $ $ 176,798.00

Grafton County Senior Citizens Council, Inc. (Vendor # 177675)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 .. Meals - Home Delivered (ARP)' 2023 $ 103,402.50 S $ 103,402.50

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $ 161,129.48 s $  161,129.48

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $ 103,402.50 s $ 103,402.50

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 $ 194,396.70 $ $  194,396.70

Subtotal $ 562,331.18 $ $ 562,331.18

Newport Senior Center (Vendor #177250)

Class/Account Class.Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $ 74,644.44 $■ $ 74,644.44

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $ 52,577.13 S S 52,577.13

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $ 74,644.44 S $  74,644.44

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 S 52,577.13 s $ 52,577.13

Subtotal $ 254,443.14 $ $ 254,443.14

Osslpee Concerned Citizens (Vendor #170158)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $  36,251.70 $ $ 36,251.70

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $ 82,665.23 S $  82,665.23

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $ -36,251.70 S S 36,251.70

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 $ 106,995.23 S $ 106,995.23

Subtotal $ 262,163.86 $ $ 262,16^.88

Rocklngham Nutrition MOW (Vendor #155197) "

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $ 229,869.84 S $ 229,869.84

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) •2023 S 145,485.29 $ $ 145,485.29

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $ 229,869.84 s S 229,869.84

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 $  145,485.29 $ $  145,485.29-

Subtotal $ 750,710.26 $ $ 750,710.26
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St Joseph Community Services (Vendor #155093)

Class/Account Class Title SPY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $  356,872.44 S $  356,872.44

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $ $ $

544-500386 Meats - Home Delivered (ARP) ' 2024 $  356,872.44 s $  356,872.44

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) •  2024 S $ $

Subtotal $  713,744.88 $ $  713,744.88

Strafford Nutrition MOW (Vendor# 260818)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $  84,376.44 S $  84,376.44

541r500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  56,242.85 S S  56,242.85

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  84,376.44 $ $  . 84.376.44

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 $  56,242.85 $ $  56,242.85

*

Subtotal $  281,238.58 $ $  281,238.58

Tri>County Community Action Program (Vendor #177195)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $ 95,276.28 $ $ 95,276.28

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $ 63,517.52 $ S 63,517.52

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  95,276.28 $ $ 95,276.28

'541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 S 63,517.52 S $ 63,517.52

Subtotal $ 317,587.80 $ J 317,587.60

Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, Inc. (VNA at HCS (Vendor #177274})

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 S  76,688.16 S S  76,688.16

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  51,101.11 $ $  51,101.11

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 S  76,688.16 $ $  76,688.16-

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 $  51,101.11 s S  51,101.11

Subtotal $  255,578.54 $ $  255,578.54

05>95*48*481010'2638 Summary for All Vendors

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decreasel
Revised Budget

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 S  1,316,909.91 S $  1,316,909.91

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  601,138.24 $ $  801,138^24

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  1,316,909.91 $ $  1,316,909.91

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 $  858,735.46 $ $  858,735.46

Subtotal $  4,293,693.52 $ $  4.293.693.52

05-95-93-930010-2606 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, HCBS

ENHANCED FMAP-ARP 100% FEDERAL FUNDS

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (Vendor #177203)
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Class/Account Class Title SPY Current Budget
' Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

102-500731. Contracts for Program Svs 2023 $  16,909.35 S $  16,909:35

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2024 $  67,621.18 S $  67,621.18

Subtotal $  84,530.53 $ $  ■ 84,530.53

Gibson Center for Senior Services (Vendor #155344)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2023 $  324.40 S S  324.40

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2024 $  1,289.49 $ S  1,289.49

Subtotal $  1,613.89 $ $  1,613.89

Grafton County Senior Citizens Council, Inc. (Vendor # 177675)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2023 $  . 8,288.42 $  - $  8,288.42

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2024 S  33,161.79 S S  33,161.79

Subtotal $  41.450.21 $ $ ■ 41,450.21

Newport Senior Center (Vendor #177250)

Ciass/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2023 $  11,029.60 S $  11,029.60

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2024 S  44,134.62 s S  44,134.62

Subtotal $  55,164.22 $ $  55,164.22

Ossipee Concerned Citizens (Vendor #170158)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2023 S  4,647.03 $ $  4,647.03

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2024" S  18,596.23 S S  18,596.23

Subtotal $  23.243.26 J $  23,243.26

Rockingham Nutrition MOW (Vendor #155197)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2023 $  • 24,727.39 $ $  24,727.39

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2024 $  98,893.34 S $  98,893.34

- Subtotal $  123,620.73 J S  723,620.73

Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, Inc. (VNA at HCS (Vendor #177274

Ciass/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2023 ,isj ■ G (S) 5175.17:82} ^5) 6i7§§23f2)

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2024 [S) ■ ^ : -G. (s) ($) {18:239:^
- Subtotal ($ ' ('22J'97:Q) (1 f2'2,797.il)

05>95>93>930010>2606 Summary for All Vendors
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Class/Account Class Title SPY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2023 S  65,926.19 S  4,557.82 $  70,484.01

102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2024 S  263,696.65 S  18,239.39 $  . 281,936.04

Subtotal S  329,622.84 $  22,797.21 $  352,420.05

Summary by Vendor by Year

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc.

SPY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

2023 $  1,962,725.43 $ $  1,962,725.43

2024- S  2,013,437.26 $ $  2,013.437.26

Subtotal $  3,976,162.69. $ $  3.976,162.69

Gibson Center for Senior Services

SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

2023 $  349,054.40 .$ $  349.054.40

2024 $  350,019.49 $ $  350,019.49

Subtotal $  699,073.89 $ $  699.073.89

Grafton County Senior Citizens Council, Inc. -

SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

2023- $  1,144,783.27 S $  1,144,783.27

2024 S  1,202,923.86 S $  1,202,923.86

Subtotal $  2,347,707.13 % 5  2,347,707.13

Newport Senior Center

SFY Current Budget
increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

2023 $  748.877.40 $ S  748,877.40

2024 $  781,982.42 $ S  781,982.42

Subtotal $  1,530,859.82 $  - ■ $  1,530,859.82

Ossipee Concerned Citizens

SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

2023 $  490,006.20 $ $  490,006.20

2024 $  528,285.40 $ $  528,285:40

Subfofa/ $  1,018,291.60 $ $  1,018,291.60

Rockingham Nutrition MOW

SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

■ 2023 $  2,004,208.08 $ $  2,004,208.08

2024 $  2.078,374.03 $ $  2,078,374.03

Subtotal $  4,082,582.11 $ $  4,082,582.11
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Fiscal Details
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St Joseph Community Services

SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revlsed'Budget

2023 $  2.815,970.42 $ $  2,815,970.42

2024 $  2,815,970.42 $  . $ 2,815,970.42

' Subtotal $  5.631.940.84 $ $ 5,631,940.84

Strafford Nutrition MOW

SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

2023 $  760.936.97 S S 760,936.97

- 2024 $  760.936.97 $ $ 760,936.97

Subtotal $  1.521,873.94 I $ 1,521,873.94

Trl-County Community Action Program

SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

2023 $  859.384.26 S $ 859,384.26

2024 $  859.384.26 $ $ 659,384.26

Subtotal $  1,718.768.52 $ $ . 1,718,768.52

Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, Inc. (VNA at HCS (Vendor #177274)

SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

2023 $  730,459.59 $ 4,557.82 $  735,017.41

2024 $  730,459.59 $ 18,239.39 S 748,698.98

Subtotal $  1,460,919.18 S 22,797.21 $ 1,483,716.39

Summary for All Vendors by Year

SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

2023 S  11,866,406.02 S 4,557.82 S -  11,870,963.84

2024 S  12.121.773.70 $  18,239.39 $  12,140,013.09

Subtotal $ 23,988,179.72 $ 22,797.21 $ 24,010,976.93.

-

Class/Account Class Title SFY Current Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Revised Budget

7872-544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  4,760,878.18 $ $  4,760,878.18

7872-541-500383 Meals - Congregate (TIM) 2023 $  2,068,479.83 $ $ ; 2,068,479.83

9255-544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  2,853,073.67 $  ■ . $  2,853,073.67

2638-544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $  1,316,909.91 $ $  1,316,909.91

2638-541-500383 Meals • Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  801,138,24 $ $ 801,138.24

2606-102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2023 $  65,926.19 S 4,557.82 $  70,484.01

7872-544-500386 Meals • Home Delivered (Till) 2024 $  4,760,878.18 $ $ 4,760,878.18

7872-541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 $  2,068,479.83 $ $  2,068,479.83
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9255-544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  2.853.073.67 $ $  2,853,073.67

2638-544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  1,316.909.91 S $  1,316,909.91

2638-541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) ■2024 $  858,735.46 s $  858,735.46

2606-102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 2024 $  263,696.65 $  ■ , 18,239.39 $  281,936.04

- Total $  23,988,179.72 $  22,797.21 $  24,010,976.93

7872-544-500386 Meals • Home Delivered (TNI) all $  9,521,756.36 $ $  9,521,756.36

7872-541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) all $  4,136,959.66 S $  4,136,959.66

9255-544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) ' all $  5,706,147.34 $ $  5,706,147.34

2638-544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) all S  2,633,819.82 $ $  2,633,819.82

2638-541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) all $  1,659,873.70 $ $  1,659,873.70

2606-102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs .  'ail $  329.622.84 $  22.797.21 $  352,420,05

Total $  23,988,179.72 $  22,797.21 $  24,010,976.93

Grand Total SFY23 2023 $  11,866,406.02 $  ' 4,557.82 $  11,870,963.84

Grand Total SFY24. 2024 $  12,121,773.70 $  18,239.39 $  12,140,013.09

Total Contract $  23,988,179.72 $  22,797.21 $  24,010,976.93

10
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State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1

This Amendment to the BEAS Nutrition Services cohtract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Home Healthcare, Hospice and
Community Services, Inc., ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29, 2022, (Item #45). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified In the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation to support continued delivery of these
services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.3, Contractor Name, to read:

Home Healthcare, Hospice, and Community Services. Inc.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,483,716.39

■3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Robert W. Moore, Director.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C - Amendment #1,
Payment Terms, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit C-1, Rate Sheet, by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-1 - Amendment #1, Rate
Sheet, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein..

-OS

Home Healthcare, Hospice and ' AlAL
Community Services. Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials,
RFA-2023-BEAS-04-BEASN-10-A01 Page 1 of 3 4/18/2023

Date .
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/18/2023

Date

-OocuSigned by;

tSiJUc

f^me:^^^e'T*issa Hardy
Title: Director, dltss

4/18/2023

Date

>io«i&iWaa|thcare, Hospice and Community Services, Inc.

N^S^tff-TMcQueeney
Title: 4/18/2023

Home Healthcare, Hospice and
Community Services, Inc.
RFA-2023-BEAS-04-BEASN-10-A01

A-S-1.2

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•OocuSlgned by;

4/18/2023

Date

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Home Healthcare, Hospice and
Community Services, Inc. A-S-1.2
RFA-2028-BEAS-04-BEASN-10-A01 Page 3 Of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
BEAS Nutrition Services

EXHIBIT C - Amendment 1

Pavment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 63.30% Federal funds,

1.1.1. 22.42% Older Americans Act Title III - Home-Delivered Meals,

as awarded on 4/27/22, by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Administration of Community Living, Title III C-2,
CFDA #93.045, FAIN #2201 NHOAHD,

1.1.2. 8.11% Older Americans Act Title III - Congregate Meals, as
awarded on 4/27/22, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Administration of Community Living, Title III C-1, CFDA
#93.045, FAIN #2201NHOACM,

1.1.3. 16.59% Social Services Block Grant, as awarded on 10/1/2021,
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Social
Services Block Grant, CFDA #93.667, FAIN #2101NHSOSR,

1.1.4. 8.79% American Rescue Plan(ARP) for Home Delivered Meals
under Title III-C2 of the Older Americans Act, as awarded on 5/3/21,
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration of Community Living, ARP Title III C-2, CFDA
93.045, FAIN#2101NHHDC6,

1.1.5. 5.85% American Rescue Plan (ARP) for Congregate Meals
under Title III-C1 of the Older Americans Act, as awarded on 5/3/21,
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Seryices,
Administration of Community Living, ARP Title III C-1, CFDA#
93.045, FAIN #2101NHCMC6.

1.1.6. 1.54% Center for Medicaid/Medicare Services- HCBS

Enhanced FMAP-ARP Funds.

1.2. 36.70% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreerhent the Department has identified:

2.1. " The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment shall be for services provided in the fulfillment of this Agreement, as
specified in Exhibit B Scope of Work, and in accordance with Exhibit C-1, Rate
Sheet.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following.

■D8

j Ml
RFA-2023-BEAS-04-BEASN-10-A01 . Contractor Initials

4/18/2023
Home Healthcare and Hospice (VNA at HCS) Date

Page 1 of 3

r;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
BEAS Nutrition Services

EXHIBIT C - Amendment 1

the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice:

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Departnient of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to.the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to beasinvoices(a)dhhs.nh.qov or mailed to:

Data Management Unit
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses'.shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date. _

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation, and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

8. Audits

8.1 .The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

DS

kM,
RFA-2023-BEAS-04.BEASN-10-A01 Contractor Initials ̂

4/18/2023
Home Healthcare and Hospice {VNA at HCS) Date

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
BEAS Nutrition Services

EXHIBIT C - Amendment 1

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

■  8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
- requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)

"to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost . Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit' quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an .independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.'

8.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

—OS

MA

RFA-i2023-BeAS-04.BEASN-10-A01 ' Conlraclor Initials _
4/18/2023

Home Healthcare and Hospice (VNA at HCS) Date

Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit C-1 Amendment 1 • Rate Sheet

7/1/2C22 through 06/30/2023 Service Units

Funding Source Unit Type

Total # of Units of

Service

anticipated to be

delivered. Rate per Service

Total Amount of

Funding being

Requested for each
Service

Title IIIC2HD Meals Per Meal 34,176.00 $8.11, $  277,167.36

Title IIIC1 Cong Meals Per Meal 14,847.00 $8.11 $  120,409.17

Title XX HD Meals Per Meal 25,289.00 $8.11 $  205,093.79

ARP Title IIIC2HD Meals Per Meal I  . 9,456.00 $8.11 $  76,688.16

ARP Title IIIC1 Cong Meals Per Meal 6,301.00 ■  $8.11 $  51,101.11

ARP Title IIIC1 Cong.Meals ADDT'L Per Meal ' 0.00 $8.11 $

ARP HCBS Per Meal '  562.00 $8.11 $  4,557.82
; Subtotal $  735,017.41

>

7/1/2(23 through 06/30/2024 Service U nits

Funding Source Unit Type

lotal # of Units of

Service

anticipated to be

delivered. Rate per Service

lotal Amount or

Funding being

Requested for each

Service

Title IIIC2 HD Meals Per Meal 34,176 . $8.11 $  277,167.36

Title IIIC1 Cong Meals Per Meal 14,847 $8.11 $  120,409.17

Title XX HD Meals Per Meal 25,289 $8.11 $  205,093.79

ARP Title IIIC2HD Meals Per Meal 9,456 $8.11 $  76,688.16

ARP Title IIIC1 Cong Meals Per Meal 6,301 $8.11 $  51,101.11

ARP Title IIIC1 Cong Meals ADDT'L Per Meal 0 $8.11 $

ARP HCBS Per Meal 2,249 $8.11 $  18,239.39

Subtotal $  748,698.98

RFA-2023-eEAS-04-BEASN-07-A01

Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services, inc.

Exhibit C-1 Rate Sheet

Contractor Initials;

Date:
4

— OS

Ma.
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretar>' of Stale of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE

AND COMMUNITY SERVICES; INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 21. 1993. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 189752

Certificate Number: 0006194145

BAb

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secrctarj' of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

nauiH Thfirrien ■ certify that;1. ——(Name of^lhe elected Officer of the Corporalion/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1  I am n rtiilr Healthcare. Hospice and CommunitY Services, Inc.I. jamaouiyoo - (Corporation/LLC Name)

2 The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly andhei^on May atwhich a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
i  (Date)

rpo (may list more.than one person)\/r>TPn' That Maura McQueenev. CfcU '•

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

^—Z— Signature of Elected Officer
Name: David Therrien ■

Title: Chair, Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20
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acoko® certificate of liability insurance DATE (MM/OO/YYYY)

3/13/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rlghtis to the certificate holder In lieu of such endor8ement(s).

PRODUCER

Dowd Agencies, LLC
14 Bobala Road
Holydke MA 01040

License#: BR-1201657

NAMEt*^^ Diane LaFleche
413-437-1062 wc.Nol:

AnoRp.qs- dlaflecheOdowd.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A Philadelphia Insurance Companies

INSURED HOMEHEAjn
Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc.
and VNA at HCS, Inc.
PO Box 564
312 Marlboro Street

Keene NH 03431

INSURER B Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company 18058

INSURERC Atlantic Charter Insurance Company 44326

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 2016266702 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

SU5R
VWDTYPE OP INSURANCE MSIL POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EPF
iMM/DPmnnn

POLICY EXP
IMM/PPhrYYYI

INSR
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE OCCUR

PHPK2$05760 1/4/2023 1/4/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occufrancel

MEO EXP (Any one parson)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER:

POLICY n (XI LOC ,
OTHER-

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

S 1,000.000

$ 100,000

$ 5,000

$1,000,000

S 3.000,000

S 3.000.000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

X ANY AUTO

PHPK2505763 1/4/2023 1/4/2024
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddenll

S 1,000.000

BODILY INJURY (Per persoo)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Peracddent)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPer acddenti

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OED

OCCUR

CLAIMS44A0E

PHUB847196 1/4/2023 1/4/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE $4,000,000

AGGREGATE

RETENTION $ mnnft

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OPPICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
If yet. deacritie under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

V^A00539811 7/1/2022 7/1/2023
PER
STATUTE

OTH-

ER
I ( II

□
E.L, EACH ACCIDENT $1,000,000

E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT $1.000,000

Prolestional Liability PHPK2505760 1/4/2023 1/4/2024 Each CIMmUmIt
Aggregate

1,000,000
3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarht Schedule, may be atuched If more apace It required)
Certificate holder is an addiliona) insured, per written contract.

State of NH
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Mission of Home Healthcare, Hospice and Community Services

andVNAatHCS:

To provide services which enable people to function throughout life at their

optimal level of health, well-being and independence, according to their personal

beliefs and choices.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services. Inc. and Affiliate

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Home Healthcare, Hospice &
Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate, \A/hich comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30.
2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets, and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate
as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets and their
cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate aiid to meet our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated-financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Home
Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern
within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

Moine • New Hampshire • Mossochusetts • Conrvecticut • West Virginia • Arizona • Puerto Rico

berrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate
Page 2

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute
assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions! misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.

Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the. audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and Affiliate's internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered In the aggregate,
that .raise substantial doubt about Home Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services, Inc. and
Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged vvith governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 13, 2022
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

Patient accounts receivable, net

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Assets limited as to use

Property and equipment, net

•  Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses"
Accrued payroll and related expenses
COVID-19 refundable advances and other deferred revenue

total current liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

I

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$ 1,298,118 $ 2,485,863

14,208 18,174

1,788,549 1,862,056
428,903 343,852

326.715 278.005

3,856,493 4,987,950

12,775,139 14,413,813

2.382.738 2.657.347

$ 19.014.370 $ 22.059.110

$  302,158 $ 437,955
961,056 1,240,725
257.913 33.582

1.521.127

18;776,013
717.230

1.712.262

19,429,941
916.907

17.493.243 20.346.848

$ 19.014.370 $ 22.059.110

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 '2021

Operating revenue
Net patient service revenue
COVID-19 relief funding and other operating revenue
Gain on sale of financial asset

Net assets released for operations

$ 13,018,339 $
2,959,326

34,300

154.426

12,849,959
4,891,571

1,800

54.350

Total operating revenue 16.166.391 17.797.680

Operating expenses
Salaries and related expenses
Other operating expenses
Depreciation

12,951,084
4,480,821
363.012

11,380,022
4,117,321
378.194

Total operating expenses 17.794.917 15.875.537

Operating (loss) gain f1.628.526) 1.922.143

Other revenue and gains (losses)
Contributions and fundraising income

Investment incorne.-net

Change in fair value of investments

650,889
160,709.

(1.867.525)

594,666
146,960

2.623.567

Total other revenue and gains (losses) (1.055.927) 3.365.193

(Deficit) excess of revenue over expenses (2,684,453) 5,287,336

Net assets released for capital acquisition
j

30.525 109.475

(Decrease) increase in net assets without donor
restrictions $  (2.653.928) $ 5.396.811

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

.4.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Net assets without donor restrictions

(Deficit) excess of revenue over expenses
Net assets released for capital acquisition

Change In net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Investment income

Change in fair value of investments
Net assets released for operations
Net assets released for capital acquisition

Change in net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

$  (2,684,453) $ 5,287,336
30.525 109.475

(2.653.928) 5.396.811

13,515
2,623

(30,864)
(154,426)
(30.525)

(199.677)

(2,853,605)

20.346.848

139,750

2,975

54,480
(54,350)

(109.475)

33.380

5,430,191

14.916.657

$ 17.493.243 $ 20.346.848

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash (used)
provided by operating activities

" Depreciation
Change in fair value of investments
Investment income restricted for reinvestment

Gain on sale of financial assets

(Increase) decrease in the following assets:
Investments

Patient accounts receivable

Other receivables

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
COVID-19 refundable advances and other

deferred revenue

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments

Proceeds from sale of investments

Capital expenditures, net of proceeds

Net cash used by Investing activities

' Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$  (2,853,605) $ 5,430,191

363,012
1,898,389

(2,623)
(34,300)

3,966
73,507
(85,051)

.  (48,710)

(135,797)

(279,669)

f876.5501

(3,218,446)
2,961,354

f54.103)

(311.195)

(1,187,745)

2.485.863

378,194

(2,678,047)
(2,975)
(1,800)

(1.688)
(263,765)

37,007
(46,437)

(452,048)
146,445

224.331 (2.178.408)

366.669

(3,646,348)
3,427,768
(578.487)

(797.067)

(430,398)

2.916.261

$  1.298.118 $ 2.485.863

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 3d, 2022 and 2021

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Home ,Healthcare, Hospice & Community Services. Inc. is a non-stock, non-profit corporation in
New Hampshire whose-primary purpose is to act as a holding company and provide management
services to its affiliate.

Affiliate

VNA at HQS, Inc., is a non-stock, non-profit corporation in New Hampshire whose primary
purposes are to provide home healthcare, hospice and community services.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Home Healthcare, Hospice &
Community Services, Inc., and its affiliate, VNA at HCS, Inc. {collectively, the "Association"). They
are related through a common board membership and common management. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Association prepares its consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP) established by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB). References to U.S. GAAP in these notes are to the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC).

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Association have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. GAAP, which requires the Association to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to dohor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Association. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Association's managerhent
and the Board of Directors (Board).

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions are to be. met by
actions of the Association or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

-7-
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Income Taxes

The Association is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). As
a public charity, the Association is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned
in accordance with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated, business income Is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Association's tax positions and concluded that
the Association has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates .

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated, financial

■  statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less, excluding assets limited as to use.

The Association has cash deposits in a major financial institution which may exceed federal
depository insurance limits. The Association has not experienced any losses in such accounts.
Management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides a reserve for payment adjustments by analyzing past history and
identification of trends for all funding sources in the aggregate. Management regularly reviews data
about revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the reserve which is netted against accounts
receivable. Amounts not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are
applied against the allowance for payment adjustments.

Patient accounts receivable, net were $1,788,549; $1,862,056; and $1,598,291 at June 3D, 2022,
2021., and 2020, respectively.

Investments

Investments in short-term investment options are reported as current assets. Investments held for
long-term return are reported as non-current assets.

The Association reports investments at fair value and has elected to report all gains,and losses in
the (deficit) excess of revenue over expenses to simplify the presentation of these amounts in the
consolidated statement of operations, unless otherwise stipulated by the donor or State law.

-8-
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall
market volatility risks. As such, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investments
will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in
the consolidated balance sheets.

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use include designated assets set aside by the Board of Directors and donor
contributions.

Property and Equipment

. Property and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance, repairs
and minor renewals are expensed as incurred and renewals and betterments are capitalized.
Depreciation expense is computed using the straight-line method over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Property is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
related carrying amount may not be recoverable. When required, impairment losses on assets to
be held and used are recognized based on the excess of the assets' carrying amount over the fair
value of the asset.

Net Patient Service Revenue

Services to all patients are recorded as revenue when services are rendered at the estimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors and others, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are
accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and in future periods
as final settlements are determined. Patients unable to pay full charge, who do not have other
third-party resources, are charged a reduced amount based on the Association's published sliding
fee scale. Reductions in full charge are recognized when the service is rendered.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided by the
Association. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied over time Is recognized based on
actual services rendered. Generally, performance obligations satisfied over time relate to patients
receiving skilled and non-skilled services in their home or facility. The Association measures the
period over which the performance obligation is satisfied from admission to the point when it is no
longer required to provide services to that patient, which is generally at the time of discharge.

Providers of home health services to clients eligible for Medicare home health benefits are. paid on
a prospective basis, with no retrospective settlement. The prospective payment is based on the
scoring attributed to the acuity level of the client at a rate determined by federal guidelines. As the
performance obligations for home health services are met, revenue is recognized based upon the
portion of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
prospective payment determined for the medically necessary services.

-9-
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Providers of hospice services to clients eligible for Medicare hospice benefits are paid on a per-
diem basis, with no retrospective settlement, provided the Association's aggregate annual
Medicare reimbursement - Is below a predetermined aggregate capitated rate. Revenue is
recognized as the services are performed based on the fixed rate amount.' As the performance
obligations for hospice services are met, revenue is recognized based upon the portion of the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation. The transaction price is the
predetermined aggregate capitated rate per day.

Because all .of the Association's performance obligations relate to short-term periods of care, the
Association has elected to apply the optional exemption provided in FASB ASC Subtopic 606-10-
50-14 (a) and, therefore, is not required to disclose-the aggregate amount of the transaction price
allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the.end of the
reporting period..

Contributions

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if Jhey are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net-assets
released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same
year as received are reflected as contributions without donor restrictions in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

COVID-19 and Relief Funding

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus disease {COVID-19)
a global pandemic. In response to the global pandemic. The Centers for Medicare & Medicald
Services (CMS) implemented certain relief measures and also issued guidance for limiting the
spread of COVID-19.

Local, U.S., and world governments encouraged self-isolation to curtail the spread of COVID-19,
by mandating the temporary shut-down of business in many sectors and imposing limitations on
travel and the size and duration of group meetings. Many sectors are experiencing disruption to
business operations and may feel further impacts related to delayed government reimbursement,
volatility in investment returns, and reduced philanthropic support. There is unprecedented
uncertainty surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its potential economic ramifications, and any
government actions to mitigate them.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

The U.S. government has responded with several phases of relief legislation as a response to the
COVID-19 outbreak. Legislation enacted into law on March 27, 2020, called the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security Act {CARES Act), a statute to address the economic impact of the
COVID-19 outbreak. The CARES Act, among other things, 1) authorizes emergency loans to
distressed businesses by establishing, and providing funding" for, forgivable bridge loans; 2)
provides additional funding for grants and technical assistance; 3) delays due dates for employer
payroll taxes and estimated tax payments for corporations; and 4) revises provisions of the IRC,
Including those related to losses, charitable deductions, and business interest.

CARES Act Provider Relief Stimulus Funds

The Association has received emergency federal grant-funding under the CARES Act from the
Provider Relief Fund (PRF) which are funds to support healthcare providers in responding to the
COVID-19 outbreak.

The PRF is being administered by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. These
funds are to be used for qualifying expenses and to cover lost revenue due to COVID-19. The PRF
are considered conditional contributions and are recognized as revenue when qualifying
expenditures or lost revenues have been incurred. The following table outlines the distributions
received, period, of availability and revenue recognized during the years ended June 30, 2022 and
2021.

Funds Revenue Revenue

Distribution Available for Recognized Recognized
Distribution Period Amount Use Through in 2022 in 2021

Period 1 (4/10/2020 to 6/30/2020) $ 600,871 6/30/2021 $ - $ 600,871

CARES Act Paycheck Protection Program

In April 2020, the Association received a loan from the U.S. Small Business Administration (SEA)
under the CARES Act Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) in the amount of $1,496,000. The loan
Is to be usedTor payroll and other allowable costs authorized in the PPP rules, and forgiveness of
the loan balance is dependent upon compliance with this and other terms and conditions of the
CARES Act. Funds used for unauthorized purposes are required to be repaid. The Association
received notification of forgiveness from the SEA on June 25, 2021. The Association followed the
conditional contribution model to account for the PPP loan and, accordingly, recorded the
forgiveness of the loan as COVID-19 relief funding and other operating revenue in the consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended June 30, 20i21. '
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

American Rescue Plan Act

On March 11. 2021, the U.S. government enacted the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). ARPA,
amongst other things, provided support for health and human services workforce development in
response to COVID-19 and broader ecohomic impacts of the pandemic. The Association received
$248,428 in grant funding under ARPA through the State of New Hampshire Home and Community
Based Service fund during the year ended June 30, 2022 for the purpose of workforce investment.
The Association incurred qualifying recruitment and retention expenses of $53,478 as of June 30,
2022, which is recognized as COVlD-19 reilef funding and other operating revenue in the
consolidated statement of operations. The unspent ARPA funds as of June 30, 2022 of $194,950 is
included In COVID-i9 refundable advances and other deferred revenue on the consolidated
balance sheet. The funds are available to use through December 31, 2022.

2. Availabilitv and Liouidltv of Financial Assets"

As of June 30, 2022, the Association has working capital of $2,335,366 and average days {based
on normal expenditures) cash and liquid Investments on hand of 27 which includes only cash and
cash equivalents.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses and capital acquisitions not financed with debt or restricted funds (unfunded
capital expenditures), were as follows;

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

Patient accounts receivable, net

Other receivables

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures within one year

2022

$ 1,298,118
14,208

1,788,549
428.903

2021

$ 2,485,863
18,174

1.862,056
343.852

$ 3.529.778 $ 4.709.945

the Association has board designated long-term investments that could be made available for
general expenditure upon Board approval. Since these investments are currently intended for long-
term investments, they have not been included in the information above. The Association has other
long-term investments and assets for restricted use, more fully described in Note 3, which are not
available for general expenditure within the next year and are notTeflected in the amount above.

The Association has a $1,000,000 line of credit available to meet short-term needs, as disclosed in
Note 5.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

3. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments and assets limited as to use, stated at fair value, are as follows:

.2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,071,402 $ 1,151,816
U.S. Government and corporate bonds 2,283,550 2,132,950
Marketable securities 7,307,967 8,726,603
Mutual funds 2.126.428 2,420,618

Total investments and assets limited as to use $ 12,789^347 $ 14,431,987

2022 2021

Investments without restrictions or designations $ 14.208 $ 18.174

Assets limited as to use

Board-designated for future use 12,057,909 13,496,906
Donor-restricted, time or purpose 217,704 350,833
Endowment investments - unappropriated spending 265,295 331,843
Donor-restricted, perpetual In nature 234.231 234.231

Total assets limited as to use . 12.775.139' 14.413.813

Total investments and assets limited as to use $ 12,789^3^ $ 14,431,987

Fair Value

FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer- a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction
between market participants and also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to
maximize the use of observable inputs apd minimize the use of unobservable inputs when
measuring fair value. The fair value hierarchy within FASB ASC Topic 820 distinguishes three
levels of inputs that may be utilized when measuring fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that
the entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that are not active, and other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Staternents

June 30, 2022 and 2021

The fair values of all of the Association's investments, wh\ch are presented in the following table,
are measured on a recurring basis using Level 1 inputs with the exceptlbn of corporate bonds
which are valued based on quoted market prices of similar investments and categorized as level 2
investments.

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2022

. Cash and cash equivalents

U.S. Government and corporate bonds
Equity-securities
Mutual funds

Total

'  Cash and cash equivalents

U.S. Government and corporate bonds
Equity securities
Mutual funds

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Total

$  1,071,402 $ -  $ 1,071,402
- 2,283,550 2,283,550

7,307,967 - 7,307,967

2.126.428 - 2.126.428

£ 10.505.797 £ 2.283.550 £ 12.789.347

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30. 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Total

$  1,151,816 $ -  $ 1,151,816
- 2,132,950 ■ 2,132,950

8,726,603 - 8.726,603

2.420.618 - 2.420.618

$ 12.299.037 $ 2.132.950 $ 14.431.987

Investment income and change in fair'value for cash equivalents and investments consist of the
following:

2022 2021

Net assets without donor restrictions

Investment income, net of fees
Change in fair value of investments

Restricted net assets

Investment income

Change in fair value of investments

Total

$  160,709 $
(1,867,625)

2,623
(30.864^

146,960
2,623,567

2.975
54.480

£  t1.735.0571 $ 2.827.982
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following:

Land

Building and improvements
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment
Construction in progress

Total cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Total property and equipment, net

5. Line of Credit *

The Association has an unsecured $1,000,000 line of credit payable on demand with a local bank
with interest at 1% above the bank's base rate (5.75% at June 30, 2022). There was no
outstanding balance at June 30, 2022 and 2021.

6. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions consists of the following:

2022 2021

515,786 $ 489,311

5.704,016 5,693,516
3,379,278 3,422,332

27.757 -

9,626,837 9,605,159

7.244.099 6.947.812

i  2.382.738 $ 2.657.347

2022 2021

Time or purpose restrictions for:
Haskell fund accumulated earnings - for office rent $ 264,104 $ 313,372

Johnson Family fund accumulated earnings - for capital
expenditures. 4,714 7.750

Dementia program - 26,480

Sewer line replacement - 20,000

Transportation - 72,785

Hospice accumulated earnings 958 3,934

Capital acquisition 10,365 10,525

Operations (414) ' 627

Jones fund accumulated earnings - for equipment (1,671) 2,529

Bednar fund accumulated earnings - for general purposes (2,397) 3,631

Hospice memorial garden 112,374 125,227

Barbara Duckett scholarship. 94.966 95.816

Total $ 482.999 S 682.676
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$ 234.231 $ 234.231
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Restrictions that are perpetual in nature for:
Hospice
Operations

.  Johnson Family fund - for capital expenditures
Bednar endowment fund - income for general purposes
Haskell endowment fund - for office rent

Jones endowment fund - for equipment

Total

7. Endowments

The Association has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
(UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donorrrestricted endowment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of
this interpretation, the Association classifies as a donor-restricted endowment (a) the original value
of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent donor-restricted
endowment gifts, and (c) accumulations to the donor-restricted endowment made in accordance
with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation Is added to
the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as net assets
with donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Association in a
manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.

In accordance with the UPMIFA, the Association considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund;
(2) The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund;
(3) General economic conditions:
(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation;
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments;
(6) Other resources of the Association;
(7) The investment policies of the Association;
(8) The spending policy; and
(9) Funds with deficiencies.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The investment portfolio is managed to provide for the long-term support of the Association.
Accordingly, these funds are managed with disciplined, longer-terrh investment objectives and
strategies designed to meet cash flow and spending requirements. Management of the assets is
designed to attain the maximum total return consistent with acceptable and agreed-upon levels of
risk. The Association benchmarks its portfolio performance against a number of commonly used
Indices.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Association relies on a total return strategy in
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized)
and current yield (interest and dividends). The Association targets an asset allocation strategy
wherein assets are diversified among several asset classes. The pursuit of maximizing total return
is tempered by the need to minimize the volatility of returns and preserve capital. As such, the
Association seeks broad diversification among assets having different characteristics with the
intent to endure lower relative performance in strong-markets in exchange for greater downside
protection in weak markets.

Funds with Deficiencies ^

From time to time, the fair value of the assets associated with individual donor-restricted
endowments may fall below the level of the donors' original gift(s). The Board's policy does, not
permit spending from unden/vater endowments. Any deficiencies-are reported in net assets vyith
donor restrictions. At June 30, 2022 donor endowment funds with a fair value of $88,977 were
below the donor's original gift or stipulated levels by $4,482. At June 30, 2021, there were no such
deficiencies.

Spending Policv

The Association has a spending policy of appropriating a distribution annually up to 7% of the
endowment fund's average market value over the previous 36 months. Appropriations are
determined and made on an annual basis at year-end.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

The following summarizes changes in endowment assets:

Without

Donor

With Donor Restrictions

Purpose Perpetual in
Restrictions Restrictions Nature Total

Balance June 30, 2020 $10,630,684 $ 314,835 $ 234,231 $11,179,750

Investment income, net 140,168 2,975 - 143,143

Realized and unrealized gains on
investments 2,623,654 54,480 - 2,678,134

Contributions 102,400 $ - $ - $  102,400

Net assets released from restrictions _ f40.4471 - (40.4471

Balance June 30, 2021 13,496,906 331,843 234,231 14,062,980

Investment income, net 158,714 2,623 - 161,337

Realized and unrealized loss on

investments (1,868,428) (30,864) - (1,899,292)

Contributions 270,717 - - 270,717

Net assets released from restrictions _ (38.3071 . (38.3071

Balance June 30, 2022 $12,057,909 $ 265.295 $ 234.231 $12,557,435

8. Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is as follows:

Medicare

Medicaid

Other third-party payers
Private pay

2022

$ 10,455,442 $
387,618

■  1,910,515
264.764

2021

9,949,738
■447,348

2,271,722
181.151

Total $ 13.018.339 $ 12.849.959

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. The Association believes that it is in
substantial compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. However, there is at least a
reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term.
Differences between, amounts previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be
recoverable or payable are included in net patient service revenue in the year that such amounts
become known.
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HOME HEALTHCARE. HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30. 2022 and 2021

The Association provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy
without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Association does not
pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenue.

The Association.provided services in other health-related activities, primarily to indigent patients, at
rates substantially below cost. For certain activities, services were provided without charge. The
Association estimates the costs associated'with providing the other health-related activities by
applying Medicare cost report methodology to determine program costs less any net patient
revenue generated by the program. The estimated costs incurred in these activities amounted to
$1,310,676 and $442,134 for the years June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Association is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through local
community support and state grants. Local community support consists of contributions received
directly from the public. United Way, municipal appropriations, and investment income earned from
assets limited as to use. Federal and state grants consisted of monies received from the State of
New Hampshire.

In assessing collectability, the Association has elected the portfolio approach. This portfolio
approach is being used as the Association has similar contracts with similar classes of patients.
The Association reasonably expects that the effect of applying a portfolio approach to a group of
contracts would not differ materially from considering each contract separately. Management's
judgment to group the contracts by portfolio is based on the payment behavior expected in each
portfolio category. As a result, management believes aggregating contracts (which are at the
patient level) by the particular payer or group of payers results In the recognition of revenue
approximating that which would result from applying the analysis at the individual patient level.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

9. Functional Expenses

The Association provides various services to residents within its geographic location. Expenses
related to providing these services are as follows:

2022 2021

Program services
Salaries and benefits $11,153,760 $ 9.677,790

Program supplies 626,487 626,624
Travel 391,355 355,613
Contract services 1,010,901 1,105,855
Other operating expenses 1,066,802 995,528
Depreciation 312.626 321.616

Total program services 14.561.911 13.083.026

Administrative and general
Salaries and benefits 1,797,324 1,702,232
Travel 93,373 81,515
Contract services 1,119,986 777,056
Other operating expenses 171,937 175,130
Depreciation 50.386 56.578

Total administrative and general 3.233.006 2.792.511

-pQtal $17.794.917 $15.875.537

Management's estimate of cost allocations at a functional level is based on Medicare cost report
methodology.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Leases

Leases that do not meet the criteria for capitalization are classified as operating leases with related
rental charges to operations as incurred. The Association's operating leases are for its office
facilities with varying expiration dates.

The following is a schedule, by fiscal year, of future minimum lease payments under operating
leases for office facilities as of June 30, 2022 that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of
one year:

2023 46,522

2024 41.938

Total $ 88,460

Rental expense amounted to $69,302 in 2022 and $65,715 in 2021.

Malpractice Insurance

The Association maintains medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis. The
Association is subject to complaints, claims, and litigation due to potential claims which arise in the
normal course of business. U.S. GAAP requires the Association to accrue the ultimate cost of
malpractice claims when the incident that gives rise to claim occurs, without consideration of
insurance recoveries. Expected recoveries are presented as a separate asset. The Association
has evaluated its exposure to losses arising from potential claims and determined no such accrual
is necessary at June 30, 2022 and 2021. The Association Intends to renew coverage on a claims-
made basis and anticipates that such coverage.will be available in future periods.

11. Retirement Plan

The Association sponsors a defined contribution plan. The retirement contributions by the
Association amounted to $154,133 in 2022 and $147,868 .in 2021.
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HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE & COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2022 and 2021

12. Concentration of Risk

The Association grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Following is a summary-of accounts
receivable, by funding source:

2022 2021

Medicare 65 % 53 %
Medicaid and other third-party payers ^ 47

Total 100 % ICQ %

13. Subsequent Events

For financial reporting purposes, subsequent events have been evaluated by management through
December 13, 2022, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be
issued.
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CHARLES PRATT
SKILLS

Hands on, critical thinker with a proven track record of transforming underperforming businesses and

teams as an effective leader, capable of working closely with diverse groups of people to achieve

superior results in manufacturing operations. Experienced In multiple aspects of management and
human resource responsibilities including vetting, Interviewing and hiring of new employees as well
as payroll management.

EXPERIENCE

Program Manager • Transportation Program, VNA at HCS • Keene, NH • September 2019 - Present

Responsible for the daily operations of agency transportation programs, including the City Express public
transportation and paratransit services. Friendly Bus door to door service for seniors and Medical Express
service. Responsible for adherence to all Department of Transportation regulation and reporting, program
budgeting, and overseeing driver and dispatch staff. Attend community meetings and forums to
coordinate with other transportation entities and the public related to transportation issues.

SUPERVISOR • CONTINENTAL CABLE • HINSDALE, NH • JANUARY 2019 - JUNE 2019

Responsible for On Time Delivery, Scheduling of Machines & Employees in the Assembly area & in the
Machine shop. Accurate reporting & documentation of steps to ensure Quality Control measurements

during each step of assembling order, to adhere to government regulations for defense systems.
Providing department meetings as needed, and weekly Management reviews.

PLANT MANAGER • FORTRESS PACKAGING • FAIRFIELD, CA • OaOBER 2016 -OaOBER 2018

Instrumental in the start-up of a new production company. Managing the day to day operations, while

instructing and monitoring safety quality and on time performance. Recorded 2 years without injury or
returned sale while training an entirely new, unexperienced workforce to uphold a high level of

standards in support of perfect production quality. Experience loading and unloading trucks as well as
conducting facility tours with new potential accounts and perforhiing routine, hands on maintenance of
new equipment.

PLANT MANAGER • MULTICELL PACKAGING • KUTZTOWN PA 19530 • OCTOBER 2010-MARCH 2015

Charged with changing the climate and culture of the facility. Developed and implemented strategies to
transform poorly performing production facility into a profitable one. Reduced set-up times, worked
closely with vendors to reduce inventory of raw materials, increasing profitability. Cross trained
employees resulting In a greater flexibility in the workforce.

PLANT SUPERINTENDENT • INNERPAC NE • KEENE NH 03446 • SEPTEMBER1997 - OCTOBER 2010

Responsible for the day to day operations of the manufacturing of the plant. Did scheduling of
machinery, personnel and ordering of raw materials. Oversaw the staff, participated in daily meetings
with the General Manager and customer service. Conducted weekly updates with floor personnel.
Coordinated with shipping on incoming and outgoing shipments. Learned how to run and setup all
machines.

EDUCATION

DIPLOMA • JUNE 1982 • KEENE HIGH SCHOOL
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Key Personnel Sheet

HOME HEALTHCARE, HOSPICE

AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC

;

Name Job Title Salary
% Paid from this

Contract

Amount Paid from this

Contract

Charles Pratt Transportation Manager $57,783.18 31% $17,959.74

...
■
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SVPPORTS AND SERVICES

IM PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. NH 03301

603-271-5034 1-800^2-3345 Eit 5034/
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June 3,2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter Into contracts with the Contractors listed below In an amount not to exceed
$23,562,550.70 for the provision of nutrition services to qualifying New Hampshire citizens, with
the option to renew for up to four (4) additional years, effective July 1, 2022, upon Governor and
Council approval, through June 30, 2024. 60% Federal Funds. 40% General Funds.

Contractor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contract Amount

Community Action Program.
Belknap and Merrimack

Counties, inc.

177203

Belknap and
Merrimack

Counties

.$3,891,632.16

Gibson Center For Senior

Services, Inc.
155344

Albany, Bartlett,
Chatham,

Conway(8). Eaton,
Jackson, Madison

$697,460.00

Grafton County Senior
Citizens Council. Inc.

177675
Grafton County and

Plainfield
$2,250,000,74

Newport Senior Center. Inc. 177250 Sullivan County. $1,475,695.60

Ossipee Concemed
Citizens, inc.

170158 Carroll County $954,498.34

Rocklngham Nutrition And
Meals On Wheels Program,

Inc.

155197
Rocklngham

County
$3,958,961.38

St. Joseph Community
Services. Inc.

155093
Hillsborough

County
$5,631,940.84

Strafford Nutrition/Meals On
Wheels

260818 Strafford County $1,521,873.94

Tri-County Community
Action Program. Inc. (Tri-

County Cap)
177195 Coos County $1,718,768.52

VNA at HCS, inc. 177274 Cheshire County $1,4^,919.18

Total: $23,562,860.70

y

''
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

Funds are available In the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide nutritional sen/ices for older, i^lated, and frail
adults in order to assist them to continue.living as independently as possible, both safely and with
dignity, by providing home-delivered and congregate meals.

Approximately 63.000 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024.

The Contractors will provide meals using the following three methods:

•  Home delivered meals, delivered by the Contractors to the homes of eligible individuals
who are homebound and unable to prepare their own meals, or who are temporarily
homebound due to recovery from illness or injury.

• Grab-n-Go meals, defined as meal delivery v^ereby eligible individuals, or their designee,.
drive to a service location and are provided a meal without being requirerd to leave their
vehicle.

• Congregate meals, defined as meals served in a group setting at State-approved
locations.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing the quarterly program service reports
and semi-annual Home-Delivered Data Forms submitted by the Contractors.

The Department selected the Contractors through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Applications (RFA) that was posted on the Department's website from March 1.2022
through April 12, 2022. The Department received 10 responses that were reviewed artd scored
by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Form P-37. General Provisions, and Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard
Agreement Provisions, Section 1, Subsection 1.2., of the attached agreements, the parties have
the option to extend the agreements for up to four (4) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Govempr and
Couridl approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, thousands of older adults
and younger adults with disabilities or chronic Illnesses may not have access to home-delivered
meals and may struggle to live independently in their homes.

Area Served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.CMS, FAIN #2101NHOACM,
Assistance Listing Number #93.CM5. FAIN ##2101NHOAHD. Assistance Listing Number #93.667,
FAIN # 2101NHSOSR, Assistance Listing Number # 93.045, FAIN #2101NHCMC6 and
Assistance Listing Number 93.045, FAIN #2101NHHDC6.



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 3

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Shibinette
Commissioner

Ttn Dtportmenl of Health and Human Seruicet'Mutton it lajoincommunitia and familie*
in providing opporlunUiet (or ctlixent to achieve health and independence.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet •

Project 10 « }RFA.2023-BEAS-04-SEASN

Project Title jBEAS Nutrition Servleee

Maximum

Points

Available CAP-BM Gibson Center

Gradon County
Senior Citizens

Council

Hiasborough

County Meals
on Wheels

Newport

Senior

Center

Rockingham
Nutrition &

Meals on

Wheels

Strafford

Nutrition &

Meals on .

Wheels

Tri^unty
CAP

VNAat

HCS

'i
Ossipee
Concerned i

Citizens i

Technical 1

AbiGtyQI )S 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 35

Experience Q2 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 28

Capacity Q3 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 25 24

SlafHng 04 10 10 10 10. 10 9 10 9 ■  10 .  10 7

TOTAL POINTS 100 100 100 100 100 99 100 99 100 100' 94

Reviewer Name

v:■Thorn O'Connor

2 "'Jean Crouch

^iMaureen Brown

^IShawn MarUn

Title

AOmlnlstrBtor 11

'Supervisor VII

;Nutriiion Coosuliani

Business Admir^strator'
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Fiscal Details

RFA-2017;BEAS-06-NUTRI

Gibson Center for Senior Services (Vendor #155344)

Class/Account

✓

Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  160.578.00

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (TIM) 2023 $  58.392.00

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2024 $  160,578.00

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (TIM) 2024 $  58,392.00

Subtotal $  437,940.00
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Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

Gibson Center for Senior Services (Vendor #155344)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  160.578.00

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  58,392.00

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (TIM) 2024 $  160,578.00

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 $  .58,392.00

-

-
Subtotal $  437.940.00



DocuSign Envelope ID; DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

Nutrition

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

05-95-48-481010-7872 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES. GRANTS TO LOCALS. ADM ON AGING GRANTS

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc. (Vendor #177203) .

Class/Account Class Title SPY Contract Amount

544-500386 ■  Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $■ 780,019.80

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  338,860.13

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2024 $  780,019.80

541-500383 Meajs - Congregate (Till) ' 2024 $. 338,860.13

Subtotal $  2,237,759.86



DocuSign Envelope ID; DDFE88EF-OB2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEA5-06-NUTRI

Grafton County Senior Citizens Council, inc. {Vendor U 177676)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered {Till) 2023 $  394,462.29

541-500383 '  ■ Meals - Congregate (TIM) 2023 $  162,410.86

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2024 $  394,462.29

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (TIM) 2024 $  162.410.86

Subtotal $  1,113,746.30



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-082B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

Newport Senior Center (Vendor #177250)

Class/Account Class Title SPY ^ Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $. 280,962.84

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  123,888.36

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2024 $  280.962.84

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 $  123,888.36

Subtotal $  ■ 809,702.40



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-OB2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

Osslpee Concerned Citizens (Vendor #170158)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 ■. Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  139,175.71

541-500383 . Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  79,048.17

544-500386 Meals • Home Delivered (TIM) 2024 $  139.175.71

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 $  79,048.17

Subtotal $  436,447.76



DocuSign Envelope ID; DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

Rocklngham Nutrition MOW (Vendor #155197)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (TIM) 2023 $  788,729.94

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  342.712.38

544-500386 . Meals - Home Delivered (TNI) 2024 $  788,729.94

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 $  342.712.38

Subtotal $  2,262,884.64



DocuSign Envelope ID; DDFE88EF-OB2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

St Joseph Community Services (Vendor #155093)

.  Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 . . Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  .1,290,268.56

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  560,579.42

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2024 $  1,290,268.56

541-500383 Meals- Congregate (TIM) .  2024 $  560.579.42

Subtotal $  3J01.695.96



DocuSign Envelope ID; DDFE88EF-OB2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

Stratford Nutrition MOW (Vendor# 260818)

Class/Account . Class Title SPY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  305,000.88

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  132,525.51

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (TIM) 2024 $  305,000.88

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (TNI) 2024 $  132,525.51

Subtotal $  875.052.78



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

. Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

TrI-County Community Action Program (Vendor #177196)

Class/Account Class Title SPY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2023 $  344,512.80

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  149,653.83

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2024 $  344,512.80

541-500383. Meals - Congregate (Till) 2024 $  149,653.83

Subtotal $  988,333.26



OocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-0B2B-4OE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

VNA at HCS (Vendor #177274)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (TIM) 2023 $  277,167.36

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 .$ 120,409.17

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2024 $ . 277,167.36

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (TIM) 2024 $  120,409.17

Subtotal $  795,153.06

10



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

05-95«48-481010-7872 Summary for All Vendors

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals- Home Delivered (TIM) 2023 $  4,760.878.18

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  2,068.479.83

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (TIM) 2024 $  4.760;878.18

541-500383 Meals • Congregate (Till) 2024 $  2,088,479.83

Subtotal $  13,658,716.02

13.658,716.02
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OocuSign Envelope ID; DDF688EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES. GRANTS TO LOCALS, SOCIAL SERVICE BLOCK GRANT

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (Vendor #177203)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  467,387.41

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  ' 467,387.41

Subtotal $  934,774.82

12



DocuSign Envelope ID; DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

•RFA-2017.BEAS-06-NUTRI

Gibson Center for Senior Services (Vendor #165344)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  41,361.00

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  41.361.00

Subtotal $  82,722.00

Grafton County Senior Citizens Council, Inc. (Vendor# 177675)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  315.089.72

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) ■2024 $  , 315,089.72

Subtotal $  630,179.44

Newport Senior Center (Vendor #177250)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  205.775.03

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 ■ $ 205,775.03

Subtotal $  411,550.06

Ossipee Concerned Citizens (Vendor #170158)

Class/Account Class Title sfy' . Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  148.218.36

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  148,218.36

Subtotal $  296,436.72
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

Rockingham Nutrition MOW (Vendor #155197)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  472.683.24

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  472.683.24

Subtotal $  . 945,366.48

St Joseph Community Services (Vendor #155093)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  608,250.00

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX). 2024 $  608.250.00

Subtotal $  1,216,500.00

Stratford Nutrition MOW (Vendor # 260818),

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  182.791.29

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  182.791.29

Subtotal $  365,582.58
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DocuSign Envelope ID; DDFE88EF-OB2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-05-NUTRI

TrI-County Community Action Program (Vendor #177196)

Class/Account Class Title SPY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals Home' Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  206,423.83

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  206,423.83

Subtotal $  412,847.66

VNA at HCS (Vendor #177274)

Class/Account Class Title SPY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  205,093.79

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  205,093.79

Subtotal $  410,187.58

05-95-48-481010-9255 Summary for All Vendors

Class/Account Class Title SPY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meais Horne Delivered (TXX) 2023 $  . 2,853,073.67

544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  2,853,073.67

Subtotal $  5,706,147.34

5,706,14734
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-8OEA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-8EAS-06-NUTRI

05-95-48-481010-2638 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS, HHS:
DTLSS-ELDERLY-ADULT SVCS. GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVC PROG,GENERAL FUND MATCH FOR

ARPA, 85% FEDERAL. 15% GENERAL

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc. {Vendor #177203)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $  215.734.11

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  143,814.63

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  . 215.734.11

541-500383 Meals - Congregate-(ARP) 2024 $  143.814.63

Subtotal. $  719,097.48

Gibson Center for Senior Services (Vendor #155344)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) ■ 2023 $  43,794.00

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  44,605.00

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  43.794.00

■■ 541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 $  44,605.00

Subtotal $  176,798.00
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-0B2B^DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS.06-NUTRI

Grafton County Senior Citizens Council, Inc. (Vendor U 177675)

Class/Account Class Title SPY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $■ 103.402.50

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  150,035.00

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  103,402.50

■ 541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 $  150,035.00

Subtotal $  506,B75.00

Newport Senior Center (Vendor #177250)

Class/Account Class Title • SPY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $  ■ 74.644.44

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  - 52,577.13

544-500386 ■Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  74,644.44

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 $  52,577.13

Subtotal $  254,443-14
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-OB2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

Ossipee Concerned Citizens (Vendor #170158)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $  36,251.70

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  74,555.23

544-500386 Meals • Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  36,251.70

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 $  74,555.23

Subtotal $  221,613.86

Rocklngham Nutrition MOW (Vendor #155197)

Class/Account Class Title .  SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $  229,869.84

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  145,485.29

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  229,869.84

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) ■2024 $  145,485.29

- Subtotal $  750,710.26

St Joseph Community Services (Vendor #155093) ■

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $  356,872.44

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  . ■ -

544-500386 . Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  356,872:44

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 $

Subtotal $  713.744.88

Strafford Nutrition MOW (Vendor # 260818)

Class/Account Class Title SFY Contract Amount

544-500380 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $  84.376.44

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $ . 56,242.85

544-500386 Meals - Home. Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  84.376.44

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 $  56,242.85

Subtotal $  281,238.58
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DocuSign Envelope ID; DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

TrUCounty Community Action Program {Vendor #177195)

Class/Account Class Title SPY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $. 95.276,28

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  63.517.52

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  95,276.28

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 $  63,517.52

Subtotsl $  317,587.60

VNA at HCS (Vendor #177274)

Class/Account Class Title SPY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $  . 76,688.16

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  51,101.11

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  76,688.16

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Ai;?P) 2024 $  51,101.11

Subtotal $  255,578.54

OS-95-48-481010-2638 Summary for All Vendors

Class/Account Class Title SPY Contract Amount

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $. 1,316,909.91

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  781,933.76

544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  1,316.909.91

541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2024 $  781,933.76

Subtotal $  4,197,687.34

4.197,687.34

Summary by Vendor by Year

SPY Contract Amount

2023 $  1,945,816.08

2024 $  1.945,816.08

Subtotal $  3,891,632.16
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Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-05-NUTR1

Gibson Center for Senior Services

SFY Contract Amount

2023 $  348.730.00

2024 $  348.730.00

Subtotal $  $97,460.00

Grafton County Senior Citizens Council, Inc.

SFY Contract Amount

2023 $  1,125,400.37

2024 $  1.125.400.37

Subtotal $  2,250,800.74

Newport Senior Center

SFY Contract Amount

2023 $  737,847.80

2024 $  737,847.80

Subtotal $  1,475,695.60
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEA5-06-NUTRI

Ossipee Concerned Citizens

- SFY Contract Amount

2023 $ 477,249.17

2024 $ 477.249.17

Subtotal $ 954,495.34

Rocklngham Nutrition MOW

SFY Contract Amount

2023 $ 1,979,480.69

2024 $ 1,979,480.69

Subtotal $ 3,958,961.38

St Joseph Community Services

4  * SFY Contract Amount

2023 $ 2.815.970.42

2024-. $ 2,815,970.42

Subtotal $ 5,631,940.84

Stratford Nutrition MOW

SFY Contract Amount

2023 $ 760,936.97

2024 $ 760,936.97

Subtotal 1,521,873.94
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Details

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

TrI-County Community Action Program

SPY Contract Amount

''

2023 $ 859,384.26

2024 $. 859.384.26

. Subtotal $ 1,718,768.52

VNAatHCS

SPY Contract Amount

2023 $ 730,459.59

2024. $ 730.459.59

Subtotal $ 1,460,919.18

Summary for All Vendors by Year

SPY Contract Amount

2023 $ 11,781,275.35

2024 S 11.781,275.35

Subtotal $ 23,562,550.70

23.562,550.70
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DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

Fiscal Oetails

RFA-2017-BEAS-06-NUTRI

Class/Account Class Title SPY Contract Amount

7872-544-500386 Meals - Home-Delivered (Till) 2023 $  4,760,878.18

7872-541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) 2023 $  2,068,479.83

9255-544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2023 ■ $ 2,853,073.67

2638-544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) 2023 $  1,316.909.91.

2638-541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) 2023 $  - . 781,933.76

7872-544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) 2024 $  4,760,878.18

7872-541-500383 Meals - Congregate (TIM) 2024 $  2,068,479.83

9255-544-500386 Meals Home Delivered (TXX) 2024 $  2,853,073.67

2638-544-500386 Meals.- Home Delivered (ARP) 2024 $  1,316,909.91

2638-541-500383 Meals • Congregate (ARP) 2024 $  781,933.76

Total $  23,562,550.70

7872-544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (Till) all $  9,521.756.36

7872-541-500383 Meals - Congregate (Till) all $  4,136,959.66

9255-544-500386 ■ Meals Home Delivered (TXX) all $  5,706,147.34

2638-544-500386 Meals - Home Delivered (ARP) all

A

$  ■ 2.633,819'.82

2638-541-500383 Meals - Congregate (ARP) all $  1,563,867.52

N

Total $  23,562,550.70

Grand Total SFY23 2023 $  11,781,275:35

Grand Total SFY24 2024 $  11,781,275.35

Total Contract $  23,562.550.70
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subiect:_RFA-2023-BEAS-04-BEASN-10 (BEAS Nutrition)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and.
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

~ AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Slate Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

VNAatHCS, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

321 Marlboro Street

PO Box 564

ICcene, NH 03431

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number •

(603)352-2253

1.6 Account Number

541-500383 and 544-

500386

1.7 Completion Dale

June 30,2024

1.8 Price,Limitation

$1,460,919.18

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Nathan D. White, Director
✓

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

I. II Contractor Signature

Da.c.6/6/2022

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Maura MCQueeneycEocEO hcs

1.13 Slate Agency Signature
DeeuMoMd i>r

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Christine santagj|JJ?,„ coomissioncr

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of.Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

By: j On: 6/7/2022
1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Dale:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor initials

Date«7B77027
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New
Hampshire, aciing through the agency identified in block l.l
("State"), engages contractor Identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incotpora'tcd
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the panics hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and E,xccutivc
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EfTcctivc Date, ail Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any cost.f incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding, any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder,'arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for-this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever' and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account-or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in (hat Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT. /
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and term.s of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete rcirnburscmcnt to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever naturc incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State rcscr\'cs the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those .
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 8C):7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unc.xpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 in connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, If this Agrccmeni is
funded in any part by. monies of the United Stales, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any riiles, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for, employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Stales
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of. this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
alt personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws:
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months aflcr the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall' not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or olTicial, who i.s materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting OfTiccr specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of, this Agreement, the
Contracting OlTicer's decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of ihc following acis or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default '):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
lake any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
dale of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
icrminaie this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending ail payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor; ■
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the. Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at'law or in equity, or
both. '

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights vvith
regard to that Event of Default,' or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Slate may, at its-sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of thl.s Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fi fteen (15) day.s after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the dale of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the Slate a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFiDENTIALITY/

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, ail studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether

, finished or unfinished.
10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Slate or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be relumed to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in ail respects
an independent contractor, and. is neither an agent nor an
employee of the Slate. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Slate or receive any benefits; workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the Stale at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes

•of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with Its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more, of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the Stale.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a Subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise e.xemptcd by law,
the Contractor shall Indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
Ihc Stale, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out pQ the acts or omisaotrtuf the
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Coniracior, or subconiractors, including bui not limited to the
negligence, reckless or inicniional conducl. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance;
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering ail properly
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole'replacement value of the property.
14.2 The"policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfTicer idcnti fied
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, ccrtificate(s) of insurance
for all rencwal(s) of insurance required undcr'this Agreement no
laicr than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificaic(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("H^orkcrs'
Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject lo.the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of. Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which .shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the lime
of mailing by certified -mail, postage prepaid, in a United Stales
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and r.4, herein.

17. amendment. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM; This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted aiid construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and.no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

J9. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict,
^tween ihe terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying

provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any ofihe provisions of this
Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any stale or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire- agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all' prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
BEAS Nutrition Services '

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1,
2022 ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties rhay extend the Agreement for up four (4) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of
the Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 9," Termination, is amended to read as'follows:

9.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole discretion,
terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in part, by thirty

,  (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor that the State is
exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.

9.2. The Contractor may, at-its sole discretion, terminate the Agreement for
any reason, in whole or In part, by ninety (90) calendar days written
notice to the State that the Contractor is exercising its option to terminate
the Agreement.

9.3. In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any reason
other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor shall, within 15
calendar days of notice of early terminatiori, develop and submit to the
State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, which
includes but is not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of
individuals receiving services under the Agreement and establishing a
process to meet those needs. In addition, at the State's discretion, the
Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen
(15) calendar days after the date of termination, a report ("Termination
Report") describing in detail all Services performed, and the contract
price earned, to and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be' identical to those of any Final Report described in-the attached
EXHIBIT B.

RFA-2023-BEAS-04-BEA$N-10 ConlracJor tniliols
6/6/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
BEAS Nutrition Services

EXHIBIT A

■1.4. - Paragraph 12, Asslgnment/Delegation/Subcontracls. is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows;

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be
performed, and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in
accordance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.
Written agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be
managed. The Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's
performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective action as
necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with a list of
all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify the State
of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

RFA-2023-BEAS-04-BEASN-10 Conlractof InHials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
BEAS Nutrition Services

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide nutrition services in this agreement for eligible
older adult and disability populations.

1.2. For the purposes of this Exhibit B, all references to days shall mean calendar
days, excluding state and federal holidays.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide Home Delivered Meals as applicable in Exhibit C-
1 Rate Sheet, and per geographic area served as described in Exhibit 8-1
Geographic Area Served. The Contractor shall:

1.3.1. Deliver meals to eligible participants, as defined in New Hampshire
Administrative Rules He-E 501 and He-E 502, who demonstrate that

they have limited capacity to prepare their own meals, have limited
ability to leave their residence, or are unable to consume meals.at a
congregate setting due to physical, emotional, or mental health
difficulties or limited desire for social interactions;

1.3.2. Comply with applicable provisions of federal regulations and state
laws on the safe and sanitary handling of food, equipment and
supplies used in the storage, preparation, service and delivery of
meals;

1.3.3. Accept referrals from Adult Protective Services (APS), and prioritize
service to participants referred by APS;

1.3.4. Ensure that each meal meets a minimum of one-third of the dietary
reference intakes established by the Food and Nutrition Board of the
Institute of Medicine for the National Academy of Sciences, and
complies with the most recent Dietary Guidelines for Americans
issued by the Secretaries of the U.S. Departments, of Health and
Human Services and Agriculture;

1.3.5. Prepare, meals, to the extent possible, to incorporate the special
dietary needs of the participant, including recommendations from the

•  participant's licensed practitioner and those stemming from the
participant's cultural or religious preferences;

1.3.6. Provide nutrition education, nutrition counseling, and other nutrition
services, as appropriate, based on the needs of the meal participants;

1.3.7. Provide at least one (1) Home Delivered Meal each day on five (5) or
more days a week, except in a rural area where such frequency is not
feasible and/or a lesser frequency is approved by the Department;

1.3.8. Ensure direct contemporaneous contact with each participant gn^^ch

RFA-2023-BEAS-04-BEASN-10 ConlracJof IniUafs,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
BEAS Nutrition Services

EXHIBIT B

day that meals are delivered as an assurance of the participant's
safety, with the exception of meals provided for weekends or
designated as emergency frozen meals which are delivered (o
participants in advance of anticipated inclement weather conditions or
other adverse conditions;

1,3.9. If unable to make direct contemporaneous contact with a participant,
the Contractor shall initiate its agency's protocol, "Non-Response
from Client at Delivery Time" or the equivalent agency guideline/policy

and procedure for home delivered meals participant's nonresponse at
time of delivery will be followed; and'

.  1.3.10. The Contractor shall provide grab and go meals during a declaration
of disaster or emergency, in accordance with" the Older Americans Act
and guidance provided by the Department, which shall be. billed to the

. Department under home delivered meals Title III, C-1.

1.4. the Contractor shall provide Congregate Meals as applicable in Exhibit B-1,
per geographic area served. The Contractor shall:

1.4.1. Provide meals in congregate meal settings, where eligible participants
are afforded the opportunity for social contact by sharing a meal with
other clients;

1.4.2. Comply with the food safety regulations cited in Section 1.3.2, above,
the nutritional requirements cited in Section .1.3.4. above, and
incorporating special dietary needs/preferences as" cited in Section
1.3.5. above;

1.4.3. Maintain a service provision log of all meals served that includes the
service date(s) of meals, the. names of participants who received the
meals and'comments of any follow-up service(s) provided:

1.4.4. Provide nutrition education, nutrition counseling, and other nutrition
services, as appropriate, based on the needs of the meal participants;
and

1.4.5. Provide at least one (1.) hot or other appropriate meal per day on five
(5) or more days a week except in a rural area where such .
frequency is not feasible and/or a lesser frequency is approved by
the Department.

1.5. Access to Services

1.5.1. The Contractor shall assist clients in accessing nutrition services by
accepting requests directly from clients or their designated and/or
appointed representatives and Adult Protective Services staff.

1.5.2. The Contractor shall:

RFA-2023-BEAS-04-BEASN-10 . Comfaclorlnillols.
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1.5.2.1. Collaborate with the Department to develop a plan to
provide support services to eligible clients who may be

.  homebound in accordance with the OAA during said
declaration in the event of a State of Emergency declaration
from the federal or state government;

1.5.2.2. Receive requests from clients to pick up specific items or run
specific errands;

1.5.2.3. Shop for groceries and complete other errands, which may
include but are' not limited to:

1.5.2.3.1. Picking up medications at a pharmacy.

1.5.2.3.2. Buying clothing for the client.'

1.5.2.3.3. Buying other items for.the client;

1.5.2.4. Provide receipts to the client after each shopping
transaction;

1.5.2.5. Establish a system to account for the-funds provided for by
the client to make such purchases;- and .

1.5.2.6. Deliver the items above to the client's home, ensuring the
■  ■ condition of the items remain in the original condition they

were purchased. ■

r.6. Client Request for Application of Services

1.6.1. For Title III home-delivered meals, the Contractor shall determine
eligibility for the service in accordance with requirements in New
Hampshire Administrative Rule He-E 502.

1.6.2. For Title XX hom6-delivered meals, the Contractor shall either assist
an individual to complete the Form 3000 Application provided by the
Department for Title XX Home-Delivered meals, or receive completed

■  applications for Title XX meals.

1.7. Client Eligibility Requirements for Services

1.7.1, The Contractor s.hall complete an assessrrient for eligibility in
■  accordance with the New Hampshire Administrative rules He-E 501
and He-E 502.

1.7.2. Clients who are referred for services by the Department's Adult
Protection Program must be automatically eligible for services and
must be prioritized for services in accordance with He-E 501 and
He-E 502. The Contractor shall provide notice of eligibility or non-
eligibility to clients and provide services to eligible clients for t^^,
one-year eligibility period as required in He-E 501 and He-E fO^

RFA-2023-BEAS-04.BEASN-10 ' Conlraclor Initials
6/6/2022

VNA 01HCS. inc. Dale

Page 3 of 13



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 255BCCB7.303D-4B9E-9026-53E70A8462CC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
BEAS Nutrition Services

EXHIBIT 8

®  1.7.3. The Contractor shall re-determint" participant eligibility for services in
accordance with the requirements in the laws and rules listed in 1.6.

1.7.4. The Contractor may terminate services to participants in accordance
with the laws, and rules listed in Section 1.6.

1.7.5. The Contractor shall obtain a service authorization for home
■  delivered meals from the Department after the participant is

determined or re-determined eligible to receive services by
submitting a completed Form 3502 "Contract Service Authorization -
New Authorization" to the Department.

1.8. Client Assessments and Service Plans

1.8.1. The Contractor shall develop, with input from each individual and/or
the Individual's authorized representative, a person-centered plan to
drive the provision of sen/ices in accordance with New Hampshire
Administrative Rules He-E 501 and He-E 502.

1.8.2. The Contractor shall monitor and adjust service plans to meet the
individual's needs in accordance with New Hampshire
Administrative Rules He-E 501 and He-E 502.

1.8.3. The Contractor shall provide services to clients according to clients'
adult protective service plans determined by the Department's Adult
Protection Program to prevent or ameliorate the circumstances that
contribute to the individual's risk of neglect, abuse, and exploitation.

. 1.8.4. The Contractor shall provide protocols and practices.to the
Department within 30 days of the contract effective date to ensure
that each individual receives services despite problematic behaviors
due to mental health, developmental issues or criminal history.

1.9. Person-Centered Provision of Services

1.9.1. The Contractor shall incorporate Person-Centered Planning into the
provision of all services in this Agreement as specified in New
Hampshire Administrative Rules He-E 501 and He-E,502.

1.9.2. Individual service plans are based on person-centered planning and
may be incorporated Into existing service plans or documents
already being used by the Contractor.

1.10. Client Donations and Fees

1.10.1. To comply with the requirements for Title 111 Services, the
Contractor:

1.10.1.1. May ask participants receiving home-delivered meals for a
voluntary donation towards the cost of the service('^)f^5,t

RFA-2023-BEAS-04-BEASN.10 Coniractor Initials
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as stated in Section 1.11. Adult Protection Services:

1.10.1.2. May suggest an amount for*donatlon in accordance with
New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-E 502.12;

1.10.1.3. Acknowledges that the donation is to be purely voluntary,
and not refuse services if a participant is unable or unwilling
to donate;

1.10.1.4. Agrees not to billbr invoice clients and/or their familes;

1.10.1.5. Agrees that all donations support the program for which
donations were given; and

1.10.1.6. Agrees to report the total amount of donations collected from
clients to the Department on a quarterly basis.

1.10.2." Tocomply with the requirements for Title XX Services," the
,  Contractor:

1.10.2.1. May charge fees to clients, except as stated in Subsection
1.11. Adult Protection Services, receiving Title XX services
provided that the Contractor establishes a sliding fee
schedule and provides this information, to clients seeking ■
services;

1.10.2.2. Shall.ensure that fees must comply with the requirements of
New Hampshire Administrative Rule He-E 501;

1.10.2.3. Shall not charge fees to clients,. referred by th.e
Department's Adult Protection Program, for whom reports of
abuse, neglect, self-neglect and/or exploitation have been

. founded;

1.10.2.4. Shall ensure that all fees support the program for which
donations were given; and

1.10.2.5. Shall report on the total amount-of fees collected from all
individuals.

1.11. Adult Protection Services

1.11.1. The Contractor shall report suspected abuse, neglect, self-neglect,
and/pr exploitation of incapacitated adults as required by RSA 161 r
F:46 of the NH Adult Protection law.

1.11.2. The Contractor shall accept referrals of clients from the Adult
Protection Program and provide them with meals as described in
this Agreement.

1.11.3. The Contractor shall inform the referrin"g Adult Protection Service® ^
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staff of any changes in the client's situation or other concerns.

1.11.4. the Contractor shall agree that the payment received from
Department for the specified services is payment in full for those
services, and shall not attempt to secure a fee or monetary
contribution of any type such as described in Exhibit 0. or Exhibit 0-
1 Rate Sheet, from the individual receiving services.

1.11.5. The Contractor shall continue to provide services to Adult Protective
clients, without requesting a donation or charging a sliding scale, for
up to one calendar year after Adult Protective Services closes the
case when a deterrhination is made that the client needs services to

help prevent decline and re-involvement with Adult Protective
Services.

1.12. Referring Clients to Other Services

1.12.1. If the Contractor identifies other community programs or services
that might be beneficial to the client, and the client and/or the client's
authorized representative agree, the Contractor may refer the client
to other services and programs as appropriate.

1.13. Client Wait Lists

1.13.1. The Contractor shall agree that all services covered by this
Agreement shall be provided to the extent that funds, staff and/or
resources for this purpose are available.

1.13.2. The Contractor shall maintain a wait list in accordance with the

requirements of New Hampshire Administrative Rules He-E 501 and
He-E 502 when funding or resources are not available to provide the
contracted services.

1.14. Criminal Background Check and BEAS Slate Registry Checks

1.14.1. The Contractor shall obtain, at the Contractor's expense, a Criminal
Background Check for each staff member or volunteer who will be
interacting with or providing hands-on care to individuals, and shall
release the results to the Department..at the Department's request,

to ensure no convictions for crimes, including, but not limited to:

1.14.1.1. A felony for child abuse or neglect, spousal abuse, any
crime against children or adults. Including but'nol limited to:
child pornography, rape, sexual assault; or homicide.

1.14.1.2. A violent or sexually-related crime against a child or adult,
or a crime which may indicate a person might be reasonably
expected to pose a threat to a child or adult.

-08
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1.14.1.3. A felony for physical assault, battery, or a drug-related
offense committed within the past five (5) years in
accordance with 42 USC 671 (a)(20)(A){ii).

1.14.2. The Contractor shall authorize the Department to conduct a Bureau
of Elderly and Adults Services (SEAS) State Registry check for each
staff member or volunteer who will be interacting with or providing
hands-on care to individuals, at no cost to the Contractor. The BEAS
State Registry check must be provided to the Department, upon
request by the Department.

1.15. Grievance and Appeals

1.15.1. The Contractor shall maintain a system for tracking, resolving, and
reporting client complaints regarding its services, processes,
procedures, and/or staff concems In accordance with New
Hampshire Administrative Rules He-E 501 and He-E 502;

1.15.2. The Contractor shall ensure any filed complaints or concerns made
by the client are available to the Department upon request.

1.16. Client Feedback.

1.16.1. The Contractor shall obtain client feedback as required in New
Hampshire Administrative Rules He-E.501.13 using a method •
approved by the Department within thirty (30) days of the contract
effective date.

1.17. The Contractor shall comply with the following staffing requirements: •

1.17.1. Maintain a level of staffing necessary to perform and carry out all of
the functions, requirements, roles, and duties in a timely fashion for
the number of clients and geographic area as identified in this
agreement;

1.17.2. Verify and document that all staff and volunteers have appropriate
training, education, experience, and orientation to fulfill the
responsibilities of their respective positions;

1.17.3. Ensure that all staff and volunteers have appropriate training,
education, experience, and orientation to fulfill the responsibilities of
their respective positions;

1.17.4. Develop and submit a written Staffing Contingency Plan to the •
Department within thirty days of contract effective date that includes,
but is not limited to;

1.17.4.1. The process for replacement of personnel in the event of
loss of key or other personnel during the period^^^sthe
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awarded contract.

1.17.4.2. A description of how additional staff resources will be
allocated in the event of inability to meet any performance
standard.

1.17.4.3. A description of time frames necessary for. obtaining staff
replacements.

1.17.4.4. An expiation of the Contractor's capabilities to provide, new
staff with comparable experience in a timely manner. ■

1.17.4.5. A description of the method for training new staff members.

1.18. Reporting

.  . 1.18.t. the Contractor shall submit a Quarterly Program.Service Report to
the Department for each quarter of each State Fiscal Year by the 1
of the month following the close of the quarter.

1.18.2. The Contractor shall complete the Quarterly Program Service Report
in accordance with, instructions provided by the Department, which
includes, but is not limited to:

1.18.2.1. the number of clients served by town and in the aggregate.

1.18.2.2. Total amount of donations collected.

1.18.2.3. Expenses by program service provided.

1.18.2.4. Revenue, by program service provided, by funding source.

1.18.2.5. Number of Title III and Title XX clients served with funds not

provided through this Contract.

1.18.2.5.1. Unmet need/waiting list.

1.18.2.5.2. Lengths of time clients are on a wailing list.

1.18.2.6. The number of days individuals did not receive planned
service(s) due to the serviceCs) not being available due to
inadequate staffing or other related Contractor issues.

. 1.18.2.7. Explanation describing the reasons for individuals' not
receiving their planned services in the Scope of Work.

1.18.3. Food Delivery Reporting

1.18.3.1. The Contractor shall complete the Home-Delivered Data
Form provided by the Department and submit the Forms to
the Department by January 31 and July 31 in each State
Fiscal Year of the resulting contract, as appropriate, which
must include, but are not limited to, the following dafaT"
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1.18.3.1.1. The number of meals served by client and,by
town.

1.18.3.1.2. The number of meals served In the aggregate.

1.18.3.2. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports relevant to
food delivery by October 15, January 15, April 15, and July
15, as applicable to each State Fiscal Year in the contract
period.

1.18.3.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data
and metrics to the Department in a format specified by the
Department.

1.19. Performance Measures

1.19.1. The Department will monitor Contractor performance by reviewing
the quarterly program service reports and serhi-annual Home-
Deliyered Data Forms submitted by the Contractor.

■1.19.2. The Contractor shall ensure:

1.19.2.1. Each client serviced meet all eligibility criteria outlined in
New Hampshire Administrative Rule.He-E 501 and 502.

1.19.3. The Contractor shall ensure the Department has access sufficient
- for monitoring of contract compliance requirements as required by 2

CFR Part 200, Subpart F, which includes but.is not limited to:
,  1.19.3.1. Data.

1.19.3.2. Financial records.

1.19.3.3. Scheduled and unscheduled access to Contractor work
sute, locations, work spaces and associated facilities.

1.19.3.4. Scheduled phone access to Contractor staff.

1.19.3.5. Timely unshceudled phone response by selected Contractor
staff.

1.19.4. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the
Department to enhance contract managenierit and improve results. '

2. Exhibits Incorporated
2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information-(Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the^ea
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Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
.  accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the'extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieye
compliance therewith.

3.2. Federal . Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; clients who are blind or have low vision; and.clients who have
speech challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement. "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed , under an
Contract with the S.tate of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided, in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other.funding sources'as were available or
required, e.g., the United .States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

3.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for anyf^n^
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• original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

3.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

3.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the provision of the services at such facility. If any gpvernmental
license or permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure

•  said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the term of this Agreement the facilities shall comply with
ail rules", orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be in
conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

3.5. Eligibility Determinations

3.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of clients such
eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable
federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and
procedures..

3.5.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such
times as are prescribed by the Department.

3.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services
hereuhder, which file shall include all information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other informatio^Ssthe
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Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department
with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations
that the Department may request or require.

3.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services
hereunder, as well as clients declared ineligible have a right to a fair
hearing regarding that determination. ■ The Contractor hereby

■ covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be
permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in
accordance with Department regulations.

4. Records

■  4.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to;

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs-and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,"
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by

. the Department.

4.1.3.- Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records' of application and
eligibility {including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
isuch recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all

■ invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.. , ■

4.1.4. Medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

4.2. During.the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
exarhination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum- number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the term^^s^

RFA-2023-BEAS-04-BEASN-10 Contraclor Initials
^ , 6/6/2022

VNA ai HCS. Inc. uai®

Page 12 of 13



OocuSign Envelope ID: DbFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-8OEA-15BD852CA40F

bocuSign Envelope ID: 255BCCB7.303D-4B9E.9026-53E70A8462CC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
BEAS Nutrition Services

EXHIBIT B

Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

■OS
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GEOGRAPHIC AREA SERVED

Name of Service County/Counties
Towns/Cities where

Services will be offered

Title lll-C Home Delivered Meals Cheshire All

Title lll-C Congregate Meals Cheshire All

Title XX Home Delivered Meals Cheshire ■ All

■ ARPA Home Delivered Meals Cheshire All .

ARPA Congregate Meals Cheshire • All .

RFA-2023-BEAS-04.eEASN-10
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreementis funded by:

1.1. 62.73% Federal funds,

1.1.1. 22.77% Older Arhericans Act Title III - Home-Delivered Meals,

as awarded on 4/27/22, by the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services, Administration of Community Living; Title III 0-2,
CFDA #93.045, FAIN #2201NHOAHD,-

1.1.2. 8.24% Older Americans Act Title III - Congregate Meals, as
awarded on 4/27/22, by the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services, Administration of Community Living, Title III C-1, CFDA
#93.045, FAIN #2201NHOACM,

1.1.3. 16.85% Social Services Block Grant, as awarded on 10/1/2021,
by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Social
Services Block Grant, CFDA #93.667, FAIN #2101NHSOSR.

1.1.4. 8.92% American Rescue P|an(ARP) for Home Delivered Meals
under Title lll-C2ofthe Older Americans Act, as awarded on 5/3/21,
by the U.S. Department of . Health and . Human Services,
Administration of Community Living, ARP Title III- C-2, CFDA
93.045, FAIN #2101NHH0C6,

1.1.5. 5.95% American Rescue Plan (ARP) for Congregate Meals
under Title III-C1 oftheOlderAmericansAct,asawardedon 5/3/21,

by ■ the U.S. ■ Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration of Community Living, ARP Title III C-1, CFDA#
93.045, FAIN #2101NHCMC6.

1.2. 37.27% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:-

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NO'N-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3." Payment shall be for services provided in the fulfillment of this Agreement, as
specified in Exhibit B Scope of Work, and in accordance with Exhibit C-1, Rate
Sheet.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice-with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice:

RFA-2023'8EAS-04-0EASN-10 ContractoriniUais.
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4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in.the
' previous month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice,
that may include, but are not limited to, .time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, ais applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and.returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature. Includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to beasinvoices@dhhs:nh.qov or mailed to: -

Data Management Unit
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301 ■

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the subrhitted invoice.

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
■  be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract

completion date specified in Form. P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.7
Completion Date. ■ ' .

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting-
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties," without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

8. Audits

8.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of-the'following conditions exist;

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200,. during the most recently completed fiscal year.
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8.1.2. . Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b, pertaining-to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulation? to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and . Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

'8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action- plans. The' Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of-
implementation of the corrective action plan.

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

■  ■ 8.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit-exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract- to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

RFA-2023-BEAS-04.BEASN-10
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Exhibit C'1 Rate Sheet

7/1/2022 through 06/30/2023 Service Units

Funding Source Unit Type

Total #of Units of

Service

anticipated to be

delivered. Rate per Service

Total Amount of

Funding being
Requested for each

Service

Tide tll'C Home Delivered Meals Per Meal 34.176 S8.11 $ 277,167.36

Title l.ll-C Cor^gregate Meals Per Meal 14.847 S8.11 S 120.409.17

Title XX Home Delivered Meals Per Meal 25.289 S8.11 S 205.093.79

ARPA Home Delivered Meals Per Meal 9.456 •  S8.11 $ 76.688.15

ARPA Congregate Meals Per Meal 6.301 $8.11 $ 51,101.11

Totals ' 90.069 S .  730.459.59

•

7/1/2023 through 06/30/2024 Service Units

Funding Source Unit Type

Total # of Units of

Service

anticipated to be

delivered. Rate per Service

Total Amount of

Funding being
Requested for each-

Service

Title lll-C Home Delivered Meals Per Meal 34.176 $8.11 S 277.167.36

Tide ni>C Congregate Meals Per Meal 14.847 $8.1.1 $ 120.409.17

Title XX Home Delievered Meals Per Meal 25.289 $8.11 S 205.093.79

ARPA Home Delievered Meals Per Meal 9.456 $8.11 S 76.688.16

ARPA Congregate Meals
Per Meal 6,301 $8.11 $ 51.101.11

Totals 90.069 S 730,459.59

Total Award S 1,460,919.18

Contractor Initials

Date:'
:e/6/?02?
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CERTiFiCATiON REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractoi^s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification; •

ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by. the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C: 701 et seq.). The January 31.

' 1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
rriay elect to rhake one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
cerlification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grarits. or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

• NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will cbntinue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
. 1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is pro.hibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that vrill be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the vyorkplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required t^y paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee wilt
1.4.1. ■ Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no-later than five.calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within terl calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Fedefaj^agency

Exhibli D - Certification regarcJing Drug Free ■ Vendor lniiials~
WofVpiace Requlremenls 6/6/2022
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identification numberfs} of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days" of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1:4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2,1.3,1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee rfiay insert in the space provided below the sile(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.'

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: VNA at hcs inc

OowSlsMd by:

6/6/2022 I
Oale Nime-^^6^i"Mcqueeney

Title: cEoceo hcs

Exhibii D - CertHlcatlon regarding Daig Free Vendor Initials^
Workplace Requlremenls 6/6/2022

cujDHHS/110713 Page 2 of 2 ■ 0^1®



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-15BD852CA40F

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: 255BCCB7-3030-489E.9026-53E70A8462CC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions,execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A .
•Child'Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Commuriity Services Block Grant under Title Vl
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV . '

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person, for Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any, Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sut>-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee.of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract,' grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with Us instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to 'a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: vna at hcs Inc

'DocuSlgiHd by:

6/6/2022

Dili ^ 'yjai^WVy^Mcqueeney

CEOCEO HCS

Exhibit E - Cerllflcation Regarding Lobbying Vendor initials
6/6/2022
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CERTIFICATiON REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Gohtractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisiorts of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. -The inability of a person to provide the certification required' below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation'in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)'
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies

' available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
.  V

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide Immediate written notice to.the DHHS agency to
• whom this'proposal (contract) is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant, learns

that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction." "debarred." "suspended." "ineligible," "lower tier covered
■  transaction." "participant," "person." "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal." and'-

"voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set-out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (coritract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowringly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded

•  from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, wthout modification; in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a-
lower tier covered transaction that it is' not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parlies).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and ̂

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Iniliats
And Other Responsibility Mailers ' 6/6/2022
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is

• suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:' .
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by .any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
■ connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)

■  transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receryirig stolen property;

11.3.- are not presently indicted forothei^secriminally or civilly charged .by a governmental entity
(Federal, Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
■  transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By.signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that It and its principals:
ill. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarrnent, Suspension, Incligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: vna at hcs inc

-0«c>Slo'wd by:

6/6/2022

Date 'lS[affiTO^^'S"McQueeney
CeOCEO HCS
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section' 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's,
representative as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscriminatibn requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either In employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin,-and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited frorh discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services Or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in-any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to empioyment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and locai
government services, publicaccommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1601,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the iaws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscai Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

-OS

Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion,, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will foiy/ard a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's •
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

i. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name: vna at -HCS inc

DocuSlQnttf by;

6/6/2022

Date . Wme:"WaLiT?i''HcQueeney
Title: ceoceo hcs

Exhibit G ,
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CERTIFieATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularty for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either,
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided In private residences, facilities funded solely.by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions oflfacilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law mayjresult in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to •
$1000 per day and/or the. imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions. to execute the following
certification: , |

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
. with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: VNA at hcs inc

6/6/2022

Date

Vf.

Nam^^'^^^'^'^McQueeney
Title:

CEOCEO HCS
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
• BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
. comply with the Health-insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Defirlitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

. d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Agoreaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data, aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health. Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the.Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
. Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receivpd-by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 ' Exhibit I Conlfflclor Initials
Heatth Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 6/6/2022
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section-164.103. ' .

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
. Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is'developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards

■  Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terrns not otheoA/ise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as aniended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act. ■

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health-Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement:' Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would.constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security. Rule.

b. • Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper managernent and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. ■ To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held" confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busies

3^014 Exhibit 1 Contractor Inilials
Health Insurance Poitabilily Act
Business Associate Agreement 6/6/2022
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all -
remedies. -

e.- If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObllQations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreemetnt including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security .Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
ay/are of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to: •

0  The nature and exient of the protected health infOrmation involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the-
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health Information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply, with all sections of the Privacy. Security, arid
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and

.. Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein. Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary"of the Contractor's business ̂ gplate
agreemerits with Contractor's Intended business associates, who-will be receiving
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of-thls Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (IO) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity; or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity .for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

1. ■ Within ten (10) business-days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
" Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PH). If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business]
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals iri accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section

■  ■ 164.506 or 45. CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any.restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed lo in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.

■ to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
■  PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate

•  Agreement-set forth herein as Exhibit I. the Coyered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the

, alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) IVIIscellaneous

a. ' Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
.shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. " Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreernent. from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created"on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be rjesohr^
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Exhibit 1 Contractor Initials''—
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SeoreQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person{s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other tefrris or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable;

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services VNA at HCS INC

by: Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Christine Santaniello Maura McQueeney

Name of Authorized Representative
Associate commissioner

Name of Authorized Representative

CEOCEO HCS •

Title Of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

6/6/2022 6/6/2022 ■

Date Date

3/2014 Exhibil I

Health Insurance Potlabllily Act
Business Associate Agreement

Page 6 ot 6

Contractor Irutlats^

Date
6/6/2022



DocuSign Envelope ID: DDFE88EF-0B2B-4DE3-80EA-158D852CA40F

DocuSign Envelope ID; 255BCCB7-303D>4B9E'9026-53E70A8462CC

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILfTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAI COWPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after Octot}er 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,00.0 but subsequent grant modifications result in a'total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and-Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4!'" NAiCS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier-of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera) Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions •
execute the foliowing Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide.needed information as outlined above, to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Jransparency Act.

Contractor Name: vna at hcs inc

X—t>oeu$lfln»d by:

6/6/2022

Diii- ^ ^ 'N^-g-KWQl^a'WcOueeney
Title: cgoCEO hcs

-09
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FORM A

-  -As the Contractor identified in Section 1 .-3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

06 06 2022
1. The DUNS number-for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) BO.percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual

• gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts. sutKJontracts. loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
. cooperative agreements?,

3.

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here .

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a)' or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

-  If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:
L

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUA)HHSJn07l3

Exhibit J - Certificalion Regarding Ihe Federal Funding
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any simiiar term referring to'
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potentiai access to personaliy identifiable
information, whether physical or-electronic. With'•regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach", in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer-Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide,. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health,-financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without .limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.-

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and

■  Human Services- (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN), .
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

.  4. "End User", means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee, ■
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5! "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder,

6. "incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes ■attempts.(either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data;, and changes to syste'rh hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

-OS
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized •
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined,in New Hampshire RSA 359-C;i9, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying Information which is linked
of linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. 'Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

■  11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments

•  thereto..

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected.Health Information that Is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization thafis accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any. Confidential Information .in response to a
-OS
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure. .

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and. Security, Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not . disclose PHI in violation of, such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may riot be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure tranismission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.'

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is enervated and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud S;torage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5. Lest update 10/09/18 ExhibilK Contrectorlnilials
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File'Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User.will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After "such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted

. under this Contract. To this end. the "parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees' it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service'or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are" in .
place to delect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential Information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with alt applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection,and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor-will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing, of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing,' emergency, and or disaster.
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of

■ New Hampshire data .shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion" and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and-professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
•  derivative data or files, as follows; -

1. The Contractor will maintain, proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery

•  • of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information lifecycle, where .applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. if the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire.- the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum

•  match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Departmerit system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a.HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department-and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
f*4anagement Survey. The purpose of the sun/ey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may

■  occur over the life of the Contractor engagement; The survey will be cornpleted
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey.be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
• or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach..
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and. security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not lirhited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5.U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations {45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor-agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doityvendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the

• State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
• provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such' DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract. .

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to. protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this Information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and .other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of, persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

■ f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually'
identifiable data derived-from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and techriologicaliy secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks^ card keys;
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section ly-above.

■  h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained. -used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with-this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer .and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section Vi:

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all" applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identity Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents"
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

-09
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5. Determine whether Breach notificalion is required, and. If so. identify appropriate
Breach notification rhethods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and l^ear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation

. measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable. In accordance with NH.RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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